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Corporate Profile

NW Natural, a 143-year-old company
headquartered in Portland, Oregon, is
one of the fastest growing natural
gas local distribution companies in
the country.

The Company serves more than
540,000 customers in northwest Oregon
and southwest Washington, including
the Portland-Vancouver metropolitan
area, the Willamette Valley, the northern
Oregon cpast and the Columbia River
Gorge. More than 200,000 customers
have been added to NW Natural’s dis-
tribution system in the past 10 years.

In keeping with its steady growth,
NW Natural has increased annual divi-
dends paid to shareholders every year
for 46 consecutive years.

NW Natural purchases gas for its
core market from a variety of suppli-
ers in the western United States and
Canada. In addition, the Company op-
erates an underground gas storage
facility in Columbia County, Oregon,
and leases additional gas storage out-
side its service area. NW Natural also
operates two liquefied natural gas
plants in its service area.
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Financial Briefs

Percent
INCrease
2001 2000 (decrease)
Earnings
Financial facts ($000):
Net operating revenues 276,011 257,950 7
Net income 50,187 50,224 -
Earnings applicable to common stock 47,786 47,768 -
Financial ratios (%):
Return on average common equity 10.4 10.8 4)
Capital structure at year-end
Long-term debt 43.0 45.1
Preferred and preference stock 3.8 39
Common stock equity 53.2 51.0
Common stock
Shareholder data:
Common shareholders 10,359 10,850 (5)
Average shares outstanding (000) 25,159 25,183 -
Per share data ($):
Basic earnings 1.90 1.90 -
Diluted earnings 1.88 1.88 -
Dividends paid on common stock 1.245 1.240 -
Book value at year-end 18.56 17.93 4
Market value at year-end 25.50 26.50 4)
Operating highlights
Gas sales and transportation deliveries
(600 therms): 1,123,287 1,179,773 (3)
Degree days (20-year average 4,202) 4,325 4,418 (2)
Customers at year-end 540,931 523,406 3
Number of utility employees 1,284 1,315 (2)
Dividends paid on common stock
Payment date (per share) 2001 2000
February 15 $0.310 $0.310
May 15 0.310 0.310
August 15 0.310 0.310
November 15 0.315 0.310
Total dividends paid $1.245 $1.240
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9%
Annual dividends paid per share
in 2001 increased for the 46th
consecutive year,a growth record
matched by few companies.

(IN DOLLARS)
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F DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

W LOSS OF 50 CENTS PER SHARE IN 1998
DUE TO ASSET iMPAIRMENT CHARGES

Diluted earnings were $1.88 per share
in 2001, matching the second highest
earnings in Company history.




Shaping Our Future means setting our
oOw1l CO UTSC, rather than letting circumstances dictate the way. It is the

difference between passively reacting to change and boldly stepping forth to create the
future we want.

INNOVATION

NW Natural seized opportunities presented by

fluctuating energy prices to provide natural gas

for local electric generation. New technology help-

ed NW Natural serve customers more efficiently.
Page ©

On the cover:

The sun rises over the grape-
vines of Alpine Vineyards in
the foothills of the Oregon
Coast Range, marking the
start of @ new day— and iflu-
minating new horizons.

STORAGE

NW Natural increased gas deliverability from its

storage fields near Mist, Oregon, to local and inter-

state pipelines. With FERC approval for interstate

storage sales, NW Natural also provided under-

ground storage service to other companies.
Page 10

PUBLIC POLICY

The Company proposed a regulatory mechanism
that would add greater predictability to earnings.
The Oregon Legislature approved a bill requiring
regulators during rate-setting to consider a wtili-
ty’s ability to raise capital. Page 13
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projects developed standardized work proce-
dures as well as bidding and job quatifications.
The Company adopted a Diversity Vision and
began diversity training company wide. Page 17




Letter from the Chairman

The challenges of 2001 did not keep NW Natural from delivering strong earnings
results and bright prospects for the future.

SUCCES

Mark Dodson,
President & COO

SFUL

o Our Shareholders:

In 2001, NW Natural had a choice:
To accept the status quo or to work pro-
actively to shape our future.

We chose the latter.

NW Natural not only overcame major
challenges in its core business, but also
set forth on an exciting course for the

Richard Reiten,
Chairman & CEOQ

SHAPING OUR FUTURE

future. We put into place new initiatives
to support future growth and entered
into a significant agreement to purchase
Portland General Electric (PGE) from
Enron. If completed, the PGE acquisi-
tion will more than triple NW Natural’s
assets and create a solid and broadened
platform for growth.

Meeting the challenges
Foremost among the challenges we
faced in 2001 were high gas prices and
aweakened economy. Both contributed
to reduced consumption of natural gas,
a slowdown in customer conversions
and an increase in delinquent customer
bills. We also faced significant increases
in health care costs and property taxes.
Itis a testament to the fundamental
strength of NW Natural and the talent
and dedication of its employees that,
despite these challenges, we were able
to meet our strategic objectives and
exceed our financial goals for the year.
In 2001, we achieved:
® Earnings from continuing operations
of $1.88 a diluted share, up from $1.79
a share in 2000.
® Acquisition of 17,525 new customers,
for a growth rate of 3.3 percent, more
than twice the national average.
® An increase in margins from residen-
tial and commercial customers of 3 per-
cent compared to 2000.
An increase in margins of $4.6 mil-
lion, contributing 11 cents a share to
earnings, from natural gas service for
new electric generation projects.
Earnings of $2.1 million, or 8 cents a

PERFORMANCE CREATES NEW OPPORTUNITIES

share, from our new interstate storage
services business.

In the spring of 2001, your Board of
Directors appointed Mark Dodson to
the position of President and Chief Op-
erating Officer. He previously served
four years as Senior Vice President and
General Counsel. MarK’s value-based
leadership is providing a strong focus
on current financial results while lead-
ing the efforts to adjust our strategic
planning to the rapid changes in West-
ern energy markets. It is a pleasure for
me to work side by side with Mark in
his new responsibilities.

Consumption drops as
Rrices rise

When 2001 began, customers were
already cutting back their gas usage in
response to high gas prices. That trend
continued through the year. A soft econ-
omy further reduced commercial and
industrial gas sales and discouraged
residential conversions.

By year-end, the reduction in gas
consumption cost us approximately $11
million, or 26 cents a share.

NW Natural recognized these trends
early and developed a strategy to offset
them. In May, a task force of managers
identified cost-saving measures that
would help the Company meet its earn-
ings target despite reduced consump-
tion. By year-end, they had achieved
$2.5 million in budget cuts throughout
the Company.

But we didn’t stop there. We pro-
posed a new regulatory mechanism that




would stabilize our earnings in the
future when consumption changes due
to weather, gas prices or other factors.

Our “conservation tariff” is now
being considered by the Oregon Public
Utility Commission. The tariff would
align the need to manage the Company
profitably with the needs of customers
to manage their utility bills. Simply
put, it would protect customers against
higher bills when their consumption
goes up and protect the Company from
major revenue losses when consump-
tion goes down.
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The Company added 17,525 new
customers in 2001, expanding its
customer base by 3.3 percent. In the
past 10 years, the Company has added
more than 200,000 new customers.

In addition to these efforts to reduce
costs and protect against future losses,
we were aggressive in 2001 in pursuing
growth.

Pursuing growth in the
core business

To respond to high energy prices
while continuing to stimulate growth in
our core market, the Company devel-
oped a targeted promotional campaign
that offered $400 rebates for customers
purchasing high-efficiency gas furnaces.
In addition, NW Natural launched an in-
novative partnership with HVAC (heat-
ing, ventilation and air conditioning)
distributors. Through that partnership,
we provided conversion leads to distrib-
utors in exchange for their contributions
to natural gas advertising, promotion
and funding of the rebate.

We also expanded the boundaries
of our distribution system.

In 2001, we seized the opportunity
to partner with the City of Newport to
cross under Yaquina Bay and expand
service to the South Beach area. The City
was laying new sewer and water lines
under the bay. We shared the costs and
laid our gas pipeline in the City’s con-
duit. Within weeks of the crossing, near-
ly all of the commercial and industrial
customers in the South Beach district
had signed up for natural gas service.

A new definition of
profitable growth

Our 2001 strategic planning pro-
cess prompted a hard look at how we
define and achieve profitable growth.

As a result, we made some signif-
icant changes to the model we use to
determine profitability when adding
new customers. The updated model
helps ensure a near-term return on new
customers. We are carefully combining
targeted marketing with improved con-
struction practices to achieve growth
that is more immediately profitable. The
results showed in 2001: NW Natural
grew its customer base at twice the na-
tional average, while ensuring a strong
return on those adds from the start.

New business ventures
yield resuits

Soaring electricity prices in 2000
and early 2001 spurred many electric
utilities and industrial customers to
investigate developing their own natu-
ral gas-fired electric generation. We
took advantage of the opportunity by
providing transportation services to
some of these customers and, in some
cases, purchasing the gas for them.
These contracts contributed $4.7 mil-
lion of margin in 2001, and some ex-
tend into the first half of 2002.

Gas storage proves its value

(Gas storage continues to give us a
clear competitive advantage in the
marketplace as well as new growth
opportunities.

In 2001, NW Natural launched an
interstate storage business to take ad-
vantage of the Company’s prolific un-
derground reservoirs near Mist, Oregon.
In May, the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission gave its approval for the
Company to sell storage services to
customers outside its service territory.
Outside companies were interested in
using gas storage to hedge against vol-
atile gas prices.

NW Natural signed contracts with
five natural gas utilities and marketers
in the Northwest. Those agreements
produced $2.1 million in net income
in 2001.

@RS SALES AND
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[ RESIDENTIAL, COMMERCIAL AND
INDUSTRIAL FIRM SALES

_ INDUSTRIAL INTERRUPTIBLE SALES
TRANSPORTATION

Gas sales and transportation deliveries
were 1.123 billion therms in 2001,

the fourth highest in the Company’s
history.

We also made great progress on
our South Mist Pipeline Extension
last year. The proposed 60-mile trans-
mission line will increase the Com-
pany’s ability to deliver gas from its
Mist underground storage field to
Portland’s fastest growing areas. In
March 2001, the Company applied for
a siting permit with Oregon’s Energy
Facility Siting Council (EFSC). In
September the EFSC staff deemed the
application complete. A final order is
expected this fall,

SHAPING OUR FUTURE




Managing gas supply costs

Through strategic gas purchases
and sophisticated hedging techniques,
our Gas Supply Department saved $15
million in purchased gas costs in the last
three months of the year. NW Natural
returns to Oregon customers two-thirds
of any savings achieved when the Com-
pany buys gas at less than the cost em-
bedded in rates. The Company retains
the remaining one-third of the savings
for its shareholders. In Washington, 100
percent of the savings are returned to
customers. In the last quarter of the year,
NW Natural was able to retain $5.2 mil-
lion of margin, equivalent to 13 cents a
share, through its gas purchasing pro-
gram. Savings on gas purchases contin-
ued into the first quarter of 2002.

In every aspect of our operations,
NW Natural had a great year. We met the
short-term challenges while setting the
stage for future growth.

Shaping @ new future

In October 2001, the Company an-
nounced it had reached agreement with
Enron to purchase Portland General Elec-
tric Company. If completed, the acquisi-
tion will bring together Oregon’s largest
natural gas and electric utilities, creat-
ing a company with $5 billion in com-
bined assets and more than 1.25 million
customers. PGE's and NW Natural’s over-
lapping service territories and comple-
mentary infrastructure create signifi-
cant opportunities for both savings and
synergies.

The terms and conditions of the
transaction will be detailed in a proxy
statement to be sent to each sharehold-
er for a special meeting of sharehold-
ers. Please review it carefully. The PGE
acquisition must be approved by NW
Natural shareholders.

Our vision for the combined com-
pany is clear. We will be focused on being
the safest, most reliable, most efficiently-
run energy provider in the nation. The
core business — including energy deliv-
ery, generation and energy supply, gas

SHAPING OUR FUTURE

storage and asset-based wholesale trad-
ing — will be our top priority. We will
also offer related gas and electric serv-
ices that leverage our core assets.

Two months after NW Natural an-
nounced its proposed purchase of PGE
in early October, Enron filed for reor-
ganization under Chapter 11 of the fed-
eral bankruptcy code. Clearly, this has
added another layer of complexity to the
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Each operating employee served an
average 671 customers in 2001,a 56
percent increase from 431 customers
served in 1991.

the transaction. In addition to the nec-
essary regulatory approvals, the con-
tract must now be assumed by Enron
and the acquisition approved by the
federal bankruptcy court overseeing
Enron’s estate. These developments
have not changed our opinion of the
fundamental merits of combining the
companies. Although we continue to
believe that a purchase is in the best
interests of all concerned, including
Enron’s creditors, Enron’s bankruptcy
and its effect on PGE have delayed and
could impede the transaction, or could
result in modifications of the terms of
the acquisition.

Getting the job done

In my five years as NW Natural’s
CEO, I have never been more proud of
the Company’s employees and man-
agement team. They fought harder than
ever toreach our goals in 2001, and they
succeeded in a big way.

I'am proud of the future we began
to shape in 2001. We have strengthened
and expanded our core business while
also creating an opportunity to substan-
tially grow NW Natural in the future.
As always, we are committed to deliv-
ering exceptional value to shareholders
and great service to customers.

It is our view that NW Natural’s
strategy fits the profile the investment
community desires — a growth utility
with a core strategy augmented by oth-
er basic energy services. We will contin-
ue to provide a solid dividend and keep
our company’s balance sheet strong.

[ am especially appreciative of the
Company’s Board of Directors. Their
counsel, support and commitment to
excellence provide the environment for
the Company’s continued success.

For 143 years NW Natural has based
its business values on integrity, car-
ing and respect. In today’s business
environment our core values are more
important than ever. Our values drive
how we relate to our customers, em-
ployees, communities and our share-
holders. The Board of Directors, senior
management and all employees of NW
Natural remain committed to the high-
est standards of conduct in every aspect
of our internal and external business
activities.

No matter what the future holds,
NW Natural is ready. Our balance sheet
is strong, our business is growing and
our employees are focused on even
higher performance.

On behalf of the officers, manage-
ment and employees of NW Natural,
we greatly appreciate your confidence
and support, and we look forward to a
successful 2002.

Sincerely,

Richard G. Reiten
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
March 20, 2002




Q.How is a slower economy affecting NW
Natural’s business?

Mr. Dodson: Between 1994 and 2000, our customer growth
rates were between 4 and 6 percent. In the short term, we can
expect the customer growth rate to slow a bit, as it did in 2001.
But practices we implemented before the recession hit will
keep the fundamentals of the business strong and healthy.

For example, the strategic plan we adopted last year em-
phasizes profitable growth. We developed tools and strate-
gies to help us be even more rigorous in analyzing the costs
and benefits of serving new customers. We also have tight-
ened our discipline in the area of debt collection, and we
have established new ways to prevent shut-offs and help cus-
tomers continue to pay their overdue bills.

Interstate gas storage is another way NW Natural is
growing profitability. Our first year of interstate sales gener-
ated more than $2 million in net earnings. Future investment
in the Mist storage field will allow us to provide a needed
service to other regional companies while generating cash
flow independent of weather and consumption patterns.

We can't control the economy. We can control our pro-
cesses, our expenditures and our cash flow.

Q.What is NW Natural doing to stabilize rev-
enues in the face of price volatility, changing
consumer patterns and unpredictable weather?

Mr. Dodson: More than a year ago, we began discussions
with the Oregon Public Utility Commission about a rate pro-
posal we are calling the conservation tariff. The tariff would
protect NW Natural’s revenues from the impact of lower cus-
tomer consumption in response to high gas prices or warm
weather. Additionally, the tariff would protect customers from
having to pay extremely high bills during cold weather.

The proposal has the support of the state’s principal con-
sumer advocacy groups, who see the advantage of stabilizing
rates. The tariff also would make it financially feasible for NW
Natural to more aggressively promote energy conservation.

Mark Dodson, President &
| Chief Operating Officer

Interview with the
President

Q.What is the outiook for gas pricing, and how
will it affect NW Natural?

Mr. Dodson: Lowered demand because of a warm winter
and a weakened economy has resulted in plentiful gas sup-
plies. The resulting decline in gas commodity prices should
translate into savings for both the Company and its customers.

By the end of 2001, NW Natural’s spot market purchas-
es cost less than the price built into customer rates. The
Company shared two-thirds of its gas cost savings for the
year as a whole with customers while retaining one-third —
or $4.1 million — in margins.

Natural gas continues to be the fuel of choice for more than
90 percent of new homes, and increasingly for multi-family
developments. And, as gas prices fall, NW Natural has a great
opportunity to make new gains in the conversion market.

Q.What is NW Natural doing to control its costs?
Mr.Dodson: Despite a slowing economy and high gas com-
modity prices, NW Natural had an excellent year. We can
attribute a great deal of this success to aggressive cost con-
trol at all levels of the Company, but most notably in con-
struction. Use of new technology and partnerships with oth-
er utilities dramatically reduced the cost of installing mains
and services to new homes.

If consumption declines, as it did last year, we must re-
duce costs to increase margins. But in cutting costs, a compa-
ny runs the risk of impacting performance.In 2001, however,
our customers told us they were exceptionally pleased with
the service they received. Furthermore, after vigorously mon-
itoring our pipeline system, we believe it is safer than ever.

I am very proud of our employees and the discipline,
wisdom and caution they used in controlling costs while pre-
serving what is most important to the Company and its cus-
tomers — quality service.

SHAPING OUR FUTURE
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Portland’s new streetcar line links a re-
developed neighborhood of apartments
and condominiums to nearby downtown
Portland. The buildings shown —and vir-
tually all other new condominiums in the
area—are served by natural gas.

N

NG A NEW URBAN NEIGHBORH
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Wild price fluctuations in the
energy market created challenges

and opportunities for NW Natural. While planning for the future, the Company
stayed focused on current customers and its core business, using technology to
upgrade customer service while keeping a lid on costs.

ENERGY MARKETS |

E arly in 2001, spot electricity prices
spiked as high as $600 per mega-

watt hour. NW Natural’s Industrial and
Commercial Solution team’s phones
rang off the hook as customers sought
ways to generate electricity on-site
and reduce dependence on the volatile
wholesale power market. Local natural
gas-fired electric generation offered
the most attractive alternative.

Inquiries covered the gamut of
electric generation techniques—from
fuel cells to 10 MW turbines. Calls came
not only from customers, but also from
public utility districts and energy mar-
keters wanting to generate electricity
for the wholesale market.

By year’s end, electricity prices had
declined, and many proposals were
dropped. However, NW Natural com-
pleted agreements for several impor-
tant projects. The Company contracted
with three electric utilities — Clark
Public Utilities, the Springfield Utility
Board and Clatskanie Public Utility
District — to supply gas to operate
electric generating equipment. The
Company also provided transportation
and gas supplies to specialty metals
and chemicals manufacturer Teledyne
Wah Chang.

Distributed generation

In 2001, NW Natural also explored
new distributed generation alterna-
tives. The Company created a consor-
tium with local, state and federal agen-

cies and electric utilities to develop
on-site electric generation using nat-
ural gas. By year-end, a model project
at the 200 Market Building in down-
town Portland was completed.

The consortium arranged for de-
livery of a natural gas-fueled micro-
turbine for on-site electric generation.
The microturbine’s waste heat will
alternately pre-heat the office build-
ing’s boiler and chill water off an ab-
sorption chiller, depending on the
season. This project is the first in the
nation to use microturbine technolo-
gy commercially in such a complex
and versatile way.

NW Natural and Portland General
Electric also have arranged to finance
a natural gas-powered fuel cell in a
youth corrections facility — another
application of innovative energy tech-
nology. The fuel cell is expected to be
in service in 2002,

Customer service

The Company took advantage of
telecommunications technology to
improve customer service. Self-serv-
ice options on the Company’s web site
and Interactive Voice Response over
the phone allow customers to make
service requests and obtain billing
information without having to speak
with a phone representative.

Using networked phone technol-
ogy, NW Natural consolidated its cus-
tomer service representatives into two

Cheis Galati, right, NW Natural's Director of Con-
servation and Techrology, and Mark Monrigomery,

Russell Development’s Chief Building Engineer,
disptay the microturbine at the 200 Market Buiic-
ng in downtown Portlend. The natural gzs-fucled
microturbine generates electricity for ighting,
and its waste heat assists the building's heating
and cooling system.

call centers (in Portland and Salem)
that operate as one. The new technolo-
gy automatically directs customer calls
from anywhere in the service territory
to the first available representative in
either location. Call center consolida-
tion helped reduce customer wait times
and improve customer service.

SHAPING OUR FUTURE 9
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UNDERGROUND GAS RESERVOIRS

NW Natural plans to extend a
pipeline connecting the Mist gas

storage field to rapidly growing parts
of Portland’s metropolitan area. The
proposed 60-mile transmission line
will connect to the Williams Northwest
Pipeline near Molalla, Oregon. The
completed pipeline will strengthen
NW Natural’s ability to meet growing
demand for natural gas in the western
and southern portions of the Portland
metro service area. It will also reinforce
service to current customers.

After 18 months of in-depth study,
the Company applied to Oregon’s En-
ergy Facility Siting Council in March
for the pipeline extension siting per-
mit. The application is said to be one of
the most comprehensive ever filed in
Oregon. The nine-volume application
contains environmental, agricultural,
land use and other studies to deter-
mine a route that best meets Company
needs and state standards.

On Sept. 24, EFSC staff deemed
the application complete, a milestone
requiring the council to issue a final
order within 12 months. If NW Natural
receives EFSC approval in the fall of
2002, pipeline construction could begin
in 2003.

SHAPING OUR FUTURE

STRENGTHEN BUSINESS, PROVIDE NEW REVENUE SOURCES |

for expensive pipeline capacity and spot purchases.

Storage services

NW Natural is leveraging its Mist
assets to bring the benefits of storage
to consumers throughout the North-
west. In May 2001, the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission granted NW
Natural a certificate permitting stor-
age services to customers outside NW
Natural’s service area. During a year
of volatile gas prices and concerns
about supply, the Company signed
agreements with five regional utilities
and marketers for natural gas storage
services. The contracts are projected
to generate $6 million in revenue dur-
ing 2002,
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NW Natural and other Northwest companies stabilize gas costs and supplies.
Gas stored underground in summer and withdrawn in winter reduces the need

Facility improvements

To meet the increased demand on
its storage facilities, NW Natural accel-
erated Mist improvements by a full
year, increasing peak deliverability to
320,000 dekatherms in 2001. The pro-
jects came in on time and under budg-
et and are fully operational.

Enhancements at Mist included
an additional compressor at Miller
Station, bringing total compression to
approximately 16,000 horsepower; up-
graded metering and flow controls for
the north and south Mist feeder pipe-
lines; and increased gas flow capacity
through the facility.
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| Vancouver, British Columbia, is one of the most
E vital and vibrant cities in North America. Its
! natural gas distribution company, BC Gas, now
! purchases storage services from NW Natural,
! helpingthe Canadian company stabilize com-
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modity and transportation costs and ensure
reliable supply.




OUNTY ON DISPLAY

The Oregon Garden is the newest of Oregon’s
many parks and open spaces.This NW Natural
customer encompasses 60 lush Willamette
Valley acres.The garden, designed to be a liv-
ing laboratory, also offers gas-heated spaces
for cultural and educational events.




NW Natural proposed major
revisions 1n 1ts rate structure, whie egisiators

addressed the Northwest’s need to attract capital for continuing investment in
energy facilities. State regulators demonstrated their continued support for NW
Natural’s safety initiatives.
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2001 proposal to the Oregon Pub-
A lic Utility Commission known as
the conservation tariff would temper
the effect of weather and customer con-
sumption patterns on NW Natural’s
financial results. If the OPUC approves
the proposal, NW Natural’s margin
revenues per customer would remain
stable from year to year, regardless of
temperature or changing consumer
usage. The proposal’s approval would
more closely align customer needs
and a growing conservation ethic with
shareholder interests.

Responsive legisiators
NW Natural worked for passage
of abill during the 2001 Oregon legis-

lative session requiring the OPUC to
consider a utility’s financial strength,
as well as ratepayer interests, in set-
ting return on equity in rate cases. The
bill was designed to ensure a high
enough return on equity to attract in-
vestment capital. It was approved by
both Houses and signed into law by
the governor.

The Legislature passed a bill de-
signed primarily to speed siting of
electric generating facilities. It also
may assist NW Natural with construc-
tion of the South Mist Pipeline Exten-
sion. Under the new law, anyone ap-
pealing a site certificate for an energy
facility must show why the project

in a year when fuel costs
hit unprecedented highs,
consumers were eager {o
learn how to stay comfort-
able while managing their
heating bills. NW Natural
arranged 7,716 residential
customer audits in 2001,
up from 3,551 the previ-
ous year. At left, Judith
Hoekstra, an emplioyee of
Volt VIEWtech which con-
tracts with NW Natural,
talks homeowner Barbara
Ellmers through the steps
of a weatherization audit.

should be stopped while the appeal is
pending and post a cash bond if the
Oregon Supreme Court grants the stay.
Previously, an appeal automatically
stopped project construction.
Support for safety

The OPUC and NW Natural have
been working together to promote
pipeline safety. In 2001, the Company
received favorable regulatory treat-
ment for two new safety programs.

The Company may be the first in
the nation to embark on an acceler-
ated program to replace its bare steel
pipe with polyethylene pipe or corro-
sion-resistant coated steel. In 2001, the
OPUC authorized project cost recovery
of about $6 million a year. As a result,
the Company can complete its work
over a 20-year period, rather than the
40 years originally anticipated.

Regulators also approved rate treat-
ment for the Company’s aggressive
landslide/geohazard protection pro-
gram. The program monitors, assess-
es and replaces sections of high-pres-
sure transmission lines at risk from
geological threats. NW Natural already
has spent more than a million dollars
ensuring that pipelines are safe from
these threats.

SHAPING OUR FUTURE
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NW Natural found creative ways
to acquire profitable new customers

despite high gas prices and a slowing economy in 2001. Success stories ranged from
expanding the Oregon Coast distribution system to winning the business of multi-

family housing developers.

NERSHIPS AND PLANNING SHAPE NEW NATURAL GAS MARKETS:

GREAT [PROBUCTS, PAR’
GREATFROBECTD, S iietoboiols o

ST |

pipeline using the city’s conduit. By { main extension attracted nearly dou-
July, NW Natural was ready to hook up
South Beach’s large commercial cus-
tomers, including the Mark O. Hatfield

Marine Sciences Center and the Oregon

ble the number of customers required
to break even.
Muiti-family

NW Natural has made tremendous
Coast Aquarium. inroads in two key segments of the
Growing profitably hard-to-crack multi-family market.
NW Natural also explored new ways : Condominium developers know home-
to maintain high customer growth in | owners are willing to pay more for
its core business while improving prof- ! clean, comfortable natural gas heating.
itability. The Company added 11,106

newly built single-family homes to the

Today, natural gas is available in vir-
tually every new building in Portland’s
system in 2001—more than 16 per- | expanding condominium market.
cent over projections for the year. At the other end of the spectrum,

The Company also focused on find- ! many more affordable developments

ing ways to extend gas mains more | are being built with natural gas. The

Dick Reifen and Execuilve Vice Prosident Mike
McCoy join Newper? Mayor Mark jones and
Newpert Development Commission Chairman

profitably in existing neighborhoods. ! Portland Development Commission,

The Clark County District in southwest ; which funds affordable housing, en-

Washington implemented a multi- | courages the installation of high-effi-

Bill McKevitt in symbollcally stariing natura!
gas service to Newport’s Souil 3each. NW
Naturai shared with the city the cost of cross-

phase effort to reduce costs and attract | ciency natural gas equipment. Because

conversions. developers using PDC funding are

ing Yaquina Bay, which made service to South

Using this approach, employees ! required to retain ownership of sub-

Beach financially feasibie.

first conduct research using a conver- | sidized buildings for 50 years, their

sion propensity study, a homeowner : long-range perspectives include use of
survey and an analysis of construction | natural gas.
In 2001, NW Natural added 3,065

multi-family units to its customer

F or years, NW Natural could not

serve industrial customers in ! costs. When the Company targets a

Newport’s South Beach because the | promising neighborhood,a marketing

cost to build a pipeline across wide | teamsendsadvance informationabout ! base—9 percent higher than projec-

Yaquina Bay was too great. In 2001, ! the benefits of natural gas to residents. | tions for the year. The Company set

the City of Newport, Oregon, extended : Shortly thereafter, distribution crews ! meters at approximately 96 percent of

begin installing pipe, drawing atten- | the multi-family projects built in the

tion to the new availability of natural

city sewer and water service by boring
beneath the bay. NW Natural shared the
relatively low cost of using the tech-

Portland metropolitan area in 2001.
gas. Using this targeted approach, the
nologically-advanced boring equip- ! Clark County District has beaten its

ment. The Company then installed its | conversion goals consistently. One

14 SHAPING OUR FUTURE
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The Pacific Northwest’s highly skilled and
educated workforce has helped attract
businesses to the region for many years.
Washington State University’s new campus
in Vancouver, Wash.,a NW Natural customer,
is also a training resource for NW Natural
employees.




In 2001, NW Natural focused on
lmpr OVng the Sl(lllS, qualifications and composition of

its workforce. Driving these changes were management goals, employee needs and
the U.S. Dept. of Transportation’s Operator Qualification rule, aimed at enhancing
pipeline safety.

ETO MEET NEW

ne of Lea Anne Doolittle’s first
O tasks as Human Resources Vice
President was to spearhead the Human
Resources Strategic Plan. The plan’s
goal is to reinforce the Company’s strat-
egy for boosting profitability, which
will require significant changes in
how employees do their work.
Using an “Employer-of-Choice”
model, the plan envisions a sustain-
able, high-performance culture. In the
past two years, the Company has reor-
ganized its performance management
and compensation systems, empha-
sizing rewards for high performers

pany expects all affected employees to
qualify by the October 2002 deadline.

A parallel effort, the Labor Rela-
tions Team Qualifications Project, is
aimed at clarifying and improving
employee job performance and bid-
ding standards and procedures. The
LRT Qualifications Project grew from
a need to unify bidding standards for
bargaining unit field employees and
office workers.

Under the unified standard, the
most senior of qualified employees is

awarded the job. Currently, teams are

clarifying qualifications for bidding

While NW Natural System Integrity Engineer

and disciplined performance plan- ! on and performing all bargaining
ning. Other projects begun in 2001 in- | unit jobs. In addition, these teams are Margarat Locke absarves, Senior Corrosion

. . . . Technician Charles Stephens completes a qual-
cluded a redesign of the supervisory ! establishing the expectations and ° g

ification test to identify levels of corrosion in

development program and improve- | measures for job performance. NW

natural gas pipes. Stephens was in one of the

ments in human resources technology | Natural will incorporate the appropri- first groups of Company employees to qualify

‘o perform tasks related to pipeline safety

systems.
Qualification projects

Pipeline safety is a priority for the
Company and the nation. The federal
Operator Qualification rule requires
employees who perform “covered”tasks
to qualify for that work by demon-
strating their ability to perform tasks
safely. Covered tasks are those affect-
ing pipeline integrity.

In 2001, NW Natural employees
and consultants drafted procedures
for more than 200 covered tasks. The
formal qualifying process includes
performing the procedure, taking a
written exam or doing both. The Com-

ate covered tasks defined by the Oper-
ator Qualifications Project into the
LRT qualifications.
Diversity initiatives

NW Natural employees formed a
Diversity Network in 1999, open to all
employees, to discuss diversity issues.
In late 2000, the Company established
a Diversity Council to develop a diver-
sity action plan. In 2001, the council
crafted a Diversity Vision and recom-
mended actions based on input from
employee focus groups.

In late fall, the Company imple-
mented the first major Diversity Coun-
cil recommendation by holding diver-

under the federal Operator Qualification rule.

sity training for managers and execu-
tives. In 2002, other employees will be
offered training. The purpose of the
training is to increase employee aware-
ness and skills for creating a success-
ful, diverse workplace.

SHAPING OUR FUTURE
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

NW Natural’s earnings in both 2001 and 2000 were $47.8 million, setting new records for the Company.

he consolidated financial statements include:

Regulated utility:
W Northwest Natural Gas Company (NW Natural)
Non-regulated subsidiary businesses:
W NNG Financial Corporation (Financial Corporation), a wholly-owned
subsidiary
B Northwest Energy Corporation (Northwest Energy or Holding Com-
pany), a wholly-owned subsidiary formed in 2001
B Canor Energy, Ltd. (Canor),a majority-owned subsidiary, reclassified
as a discontinued segment in 1999 and sold in 2000

Together these businesses are referred to herein as the “Company” (see
“Non-utility Operations” below, and Note 2 to the Consolidated Finan-
cial Statements).

The following is management’s assessment of the Company’s finan-
cial condition including the principal factors that affect results of oper-
ations. The discussion refers to the consolidated activities of the Com-
pany for the three years ended Dec. 31,2001.

Among its accomplishments in 2001, NW Natural:
B grew the customer base by more than 3 percent, adding 17,525 cus-
tomers to its gas distribution system during the year;

B commenced interstate gas storage services under a certificate grant-
ed by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, enabled by an expan-
sion of the Company’s Mist gas storage facilities;

B extended natural gas service to the South Beach district of Newport,
Oregon, and made progress toward its goal of providing natural gas ser-
vice to Coos Bay, Oregon, in late 2002 or early 2003;

B streamlined operations and improved service and productivity by
combining call centers, replacing the general ledger accounting system
and migrating away from a contract mainframe computer;

W negotiated an agreement to purchase the stock of Portland General
Electric Company (PGE) from Enron Corp., a transaction that, if com-
pleted, would create one of the largest energy companies in the Northwest
with $5 billion in assets and more than 1.25 million electric and gas
customers; and

W increased the quarterly dividend on common stock, making 2001
the 46th consecutive year in which the Company’s dividend payments
have increased.

and 2000 were $47.8 million, up from $42.8 million in 1999. Earnings
for 2001 and 2000 set new records for the Company while earnings for
1999 were its fourth highest on record. Diluted earnings per share from
consolidated operations were $1.88 a share in both 2001 and 2000, com-
pared to $1.70 a share in 1999.

NW Natural earned $1.76 a diluted share from gas utility opera-
tions in 2001 compared to $1.78 in 2000 and $1.66 in 1999. Weather con-
ditions in its service territory in 2001 were 2 percent warmer than 2000
and 3 percent colder than the 20-year average. Weather in 2000 was 4
percent colder than in 1999 and 5 percent colder than the 20-year aver-
age. Weather in 1999 was 2 percent colder than the 20-year average.
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Non-utility operating results for 2001 were earnings of 12 cents a
share, including 8 cents a share from gas storage services. Non-utility
operating results for 2000, excluding Canor, were earnings of 1 cent a
share compared to earnings of 3 cents a share in 1999. The Company rec-
ognized a gain equivalent to 9 cents a share from the sale of Canor in
2000. Operating results from Canor in 1999 were earnings of 1 cent a
share (see “Non-utility Operations;” below).

2001 was the 46th consecutive year in which the Company’s dividends
paid have increased. Dividends paid on common stock were $1.245 a
share in 2001 compared to $1.24 a share in 2000 and $1.225 a share in 1999.

.CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In preparing the Company’s financial statements using generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America (GAAP),
management exercises judgment in the selection and application of
accounting principles, including making estimates and assumptions.
Management considers Critical Accounting Policies to be those that could
result in materially different financial statement results if the Company’s
assumptions regarding application of accounting principles were dif-
ferent. The Company’s Critical Accounting Policies are described below.
Other significant accounting policies and recent accounting pronounce-
ments are discussed in Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Regulatory Accounting

NW Natural generally uses the same accounting policies and prac-
tices used by unregulated companies for financial reporting under GAAP.
However, sometimes these principles, such as Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71,“Accounting for the Effects of Certain
Types of Regulation,” require special accounting treatment for regulat-
ed companies to show the effect of regulation. For example, in setting
NW Natural’s retail rates, the 0PUC may not allow NW Natural to cur-
rently charge its customers to recover certain expenses, but instead re-
quires that these expenses be charged to customers in the future. In
this situation, SFAS No. 71 requires NW Natural to defer these items
and show them as regulatory assets on the balance sheet until NW
Natural is allowed to charge its customers. NW Natural then amortizes
these items as expense to the income statement as those charges are
recovered from customers. Similarly, certain revenue items may be
deferred as regulatory liabilities, which are also eventually amortized
to the income statement as rates to customers are reduced.

The conditions a regulated company must satisty to apply the account-
ing policies and practices of SFAS No. 71 include:

W an independent regulator sets rates;

W the regulator sets the rates to cover specific costs of delivering serv-
ice; and

W the service territory lacks competitive pressures to reduce rates below
the rates set by the regulator.

NW Natural applies SFAS No. 71 in accounting for its regulated oper-
ations. The Company periodically assesses whether it can continue to
apply SFAS No. 71. If NW Natural should determine in the future that
all or a portion of its regulatory assets and liabilities no longer meet the
criteria for continued application of SFAS No. 71, it would be required
to write off the related balances of its regulatory assets as a charge to
its income statement.




Revenue Recognition

Utility revenues are derived primarily from the sale and transporta-
tion of natural gas. Utility revenue from gas sales and transportation is
recognized when the gas is delivered to and received by the customer.
Estimated revenues are accrued for gas deliveries not billed to cus-
tomers from meter reading dates to month end (unbilled revenue) and
are reversed the following month when actual billings occur. Revenues
recognized in 2001,2000 and 1999 included the net change in unbilled
utility revenue of $13.8 million, $12.7 million and negative $2.7 million,
respectively.

Revenues from non-utility services, including gas storage services,
are recognized upon delivery of the service to customers.

Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities

The Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative In-
struments and Hedging Activities,” on Jan. 1,2001. This statement estab-
lishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments,
including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts,
and for hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 requires that an entity recog-
nize derivatives as either assets or liabilities on the balance sheet and
measure those instruments at fair value. SFAS No. 133 also requires that
changes in the fair value of a derivative be recognized currently in earn-
ings unless specific hedge accounting criteria are met.

NW Natural’s Derivatives Policy sets forth the guidelines for using
selected financial derivative products to support prudent risk manage-
ment strategies within designated parameters (see Note 1). NW Natural’s
primary hedging activities, i.e. natural gas commodity price and foreign
currency exchange rates, are accounted for as cash flow hedges under
SFAS No. 133 and are subject to regulatory deferral pursuant to SFAS No.
71. Unrealized gains and losses from mark-to-market valuations of these
contracts are not recognized in the income statement but are reported
as derivative assets or liabilities and offset by a corresponding deferred
account balance included under “Regulatory assets.”

Upon adoption of SFAS No. 133, NW Natural recorded a one-time
transition adjustment by debiting receivables from counterparties (a reg-
ulatory asset account) and crediting recoverable gas costs (an offsetting
regulatory asset account) on the balance sheet for approximately $165
million, representing the initial recognition of the fair values of hedge
derivatives outstanding on the adoption date. The financial statements
for periods prior to 2001 do not reflect the requirements of SFAS No. 133.

At Dec. 31,2001, NW Natural had derivatives outstanding covering
its exposures to commodity and foreign currency prices (see Note 11).
The fair value of the hedge derivatives outstanding on that date was a
net loss of about $112 million. NW Natural had six natural gas com-
modity-price swap contracts extending beyond Dec. 31,2002, but none
extends longer than Oct. 31, 2003. None of the natural gas commodity
price call option contracts extends beyond Dec. 31, 2002.

In 2001, NW Natural realized net gains of $57.6 million from the set-
tlement of natural gas commodity-price swap and call option contracts,
which were recorded as reductions to the cost of gas, compared to net
gains of $56.2 million during 2000. The currency exchange rate in all
foreign currency forward purchase contracts is included in NW Natural’s
cost of gas at settlement; therefore, no gain or loss was recorded from
the settlement of those contracts.

The fair value of derivative instruments at Dec. 31,2001 was deter-
mined using estimated or quoted market prices for the periods cov-

ered by the contracts. Market prices for the natural gas commodity-
price swap and call option contracts were obtained from external
sources. These third-party valuations are reviewed for reasonableness
by the Company using fair value calculations for other contracts with
similar terms and conditions. The market prices for the foreign cur-
rency forward contracts were based on the currency exchange rates
quoted by The Bank of Canada.

Regulatory Matters

NW Natural provides gas utility service in Oregon and Washington,
with Oregon representing over 90 percent of its revenues. Future earn-
ings and cash flows from utility operations will be determined largely
by the pace of continued growth in the residential and commercial mar-
kets, the ability to remain price competitive in the large industrial mar-
ket, to control expenses, and to obtain reasonable and timely regulato-
ry ratemaking treatment for investments made in utility plant.

In October 2000, the Washington Utilities and Transportation Com-
mission (WUTC) authorized a general rate increase totaling $4.3 mil-
lion per vear, or 12.1 percent. The first $3.0 million per year of the rev-
enue increase, relating to costs allocated to Washington under a new cost
allocation study approved by the WUTC and the Public Utility Com-
mission of Oregon (OPUC), was effective on Nov. 1,2000. The remaining
increase of $1.3 million per year became effective on Oct. 1,2001. The
WUTC authorized and based rates on a return on common equity (ROE)
of 10.8 percent.

In November 1999, the OPUC authorized a general rate increase of
$0.2 million per year, effective Dec. 1, 1999. Higher revenues from rate
increases averaging 1.3 percent for residential customers were partial-
ly offset by rate decreases for certain industrial and large commercial
customers. The OPUC authorized and based rates on an ROE of 10.25
percent. On Dec. 1, 2000, rates were reduced in Oregon by $3.0 million
per year to implement the cost allocation study that produced the equiv-
alent rate increase in Washington.

NW Natural applies rate changes each year reflecting changes in its
purchased gas costs, the application of temporary rate adjustments to
amortize regulatory balancing accounts and the removal of temporary
rate adjustments effective the previous year. The OPUC approved rate
increases averaging 21.7 percent for Oregon sales customers and the
WUTC approved rate increases averaging 21.3 percent for Washington
sales customers, both effective on Oct. 1, 2001. These rate increases
primarily reflect increases in the costs of natural gas commodity pur-
chased under contracts with gas producers (see “Comparison of Gas Op-
erations - Cost of Gas, below).

Also reflecting changes in NW Natural’s purchased gas costs, the
OPUC approved rate increases averaging 23 percent effective Oct. 1,2000,
and increases averaging 9.1 percent effective Dec. 1,1999. The WUTC
approved rate increases averaging 23 percent effective Aug. 1,2000,and
increases averaging 11.1 percent effective Dec. 1,1999.

NW Natural believes that reductions in recent years in its customers’
gas consumptions per degree day (see “Residential and Commercial,”
below) are caused by the higher cost of purchased gas, which is passed
on to customers as rate increases, and to efforts throughout the region
to conserve energy. NW Natural filed with the OPUC in 2001 for approval
of a new regulatory mechanism that is intended to stabilize margin
revenues in the face of variable consumption patterns. The proposed
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

regulatory mechanism is intended to stabilize margin revenues to
assure NW Natural of fixed cost recovery and more predictable share-
holder earnings. NW Natural has proposed that this be accomplished
through a balancing account that would compare actual usage of resi-
dential and commercial customers against their normal usage levels
and treat any variations as refunds or collections of revenues. In Feb-
ruary 2002, the administrative law judge in this proceeding issued a
memorandum to the parties advising them that the OPUC has decid-
ed to hold the docket regarding NW Natural’s proposed regulatory
mechanism in abeyance, along with a docket involving a similar filing
by PGE, pending its review of NW Natural’s application to acquire PGE.
NW Natural estimates that if customers’ gas consumption patterns as
experienced in 2001 were to continue for the full year but a margin
stabilization mechanism were not approved, it could reduce margin
revenues in 2002 by the equivalent of 24 cents a share of earnings com-
pared to results with a mechanism in place.

In an order issued in 1999, the OPUC formalized a process that tests
for excessive earnings in connection with gas utilities’ annual filings
for rate changes due to increases or decreases in gas costs. The OPUC
confirmed NW Natural’s ability to pass through 100 percent of its pru-
dently incurred gas costs into rates. Under this order, NW Natural is
authorized to retain all of its earnings up to a threshold level equal to its
authorized ROE plus 300 basis points. One-third of any earnings above
that level will be refunded to customers. The excess earnings threshold
is subject to adjustment up or down each year depending on move-
ments in interest rates.

Comparison of Gas Operations
The following table summarizes the composition of gas utility vol-

umes and revenues for the three years ended Dec. 31:

Thousands
(Except customers and degree days) 2001 2000 1999

Gas Sales and Transportation Volumes - Therms:
Residential and commercial

sales 592,358 606,755 605,351
Unbilled volumes 1,771 8,691 (9,343)
Weather-sensitive volumes 594,129 53% 615,446 52% 596,008 49%
Industrial firm sales 79,778 7% 76,559 6% 84,630 7%
Industrial interruptible sales 63,597 6% 56,632 5% 52,938 4%

737,504 66%
385,783 34%

748,637 63%
431,136 _37%

733,576 60%
480,570 _40%

Total gas sales
Transportation deliveries
Total volumes sold and

delivered

1,123,287 100% 1,179,773 100% 1,214,146 100%

Utility Operating Revenues - Dollars:
Residential and commercial

sales $520,141 $ 440,302 $ 382,377
Unbilled revenues 13,774 12,661 (2,671)
Weather-sensitive revenues 533,915 84% 452,963 85% 379,706 83%
Industrial firm sales 49,662 8% 37,378 7% 35857 8%
Industrial interruptible sales 34,283 _ 5% _ 23483 5% _ 17,182 4%
Total gas sales 617,860 97% 513,824 97% 432,745 95%
Transportation revenues 20,637 3% 21491 4% 21,351 5%
Other revenues (2,325) - (3,976) (1%) 1,194 -
Total utility operating
revenues $636,172 100% $531,339 100% $455,290 100%
Cost of gas sold $ 364,699 $ 273,978 $212,021
Total number of customers
(end of period) 540,931 523,406 501,163
Actual degree days 4,325 4,418 4,256
20-year average degree days 4,202 4,197 4,193
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Residential and Commercial

NW Natural continued to grow its customer base, with 17,525 cus-
tomers added during 2001. This represents a growth rate of 3.3 per-
cent, compared to 4.4 percent in 2000 and 5 percent in 1999. NW Natural
believes that the lower growth rate in 2001 reflects the effects of high-
er gas prices and the economic recession. In the three years ended Dec.
31,2001, more than 63,000
customers were added to the
system, representing an
average annual growth rate
of 4.4 percent.

Typically, 80 percent or
more of NW Natural’s annu-
al utility operating revenues
are derived from gas sales to $500

(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS)

$550 §534
$525

weather-sensitive residen-
tial and commercial cus-
tomers. Accordingly, varia-

$475
$450
5425

tions in temperatures be-
tween periods will affect
volumes of gas sold to and
revenues derived from these
customers.

Weather conditions were
3 percent colder than aver-
age in 2001, 5 percent cold-
er than average in 2000 and
2 percent colder than aver-
age in 1999. Average weath-
er conditions are calculated
from the most recent 20
years of temperature data measured by heating degree days. Weather in
2001 was 2 percent warmer than 2000 while 2000 was 4 percent colder
than 1999.

The volumes of gas sold to residential and commercial customers
were 3 percent lower in 2001 than in 2000, reflecting warmer weather
as well as lower consumption patterns by customers due to higher gas
commodity prices tracked into rates in the fall of 2000 and again in
October 2001. Lower consumptions per degree day by temperature-
sensitive customers reduced sales for the year by an estimated 39 mil-
lion therms and reduced margin (revenues less cost of gas) by approx-
imately $11 million, equivalent to 26 cents a share. The volumes of gas
sold to residential and commercial customers were 3 percent higher in
2000 than in 1999, reflecting the continued customer growth and cold-
er weather. Revenue from residential and commercial customers was up
18 percent in 2001 due to rate increases effective in 2000 and 2001, and
up 19 percent in 2000 due to increased volumes and rate increases effec-
tive in 1999 and 2000.

In order to match revenues with related purchased gas costs, NW
Natural records unbilled revenues for gas delivered but not yet billed to
customers through the end of the period. Amounts reported as unbilled
revenues reflect the increase or decrease in the balance of unbilled rev-
enues over the prior year end. Year-end balances are affected by weath-
er conditions, rate changes and customer billing dates from one peri-
od to the next.

$400
$375
$350

4,325
H degree
days
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Weather-sensitive operating revenues
have been at record levels over the
past three year period. Weather
conditions in 2001 were 3 percent
colder than the 20 year average.




Industrial Sales, Transportation and Other Revenues

Total volumes of gas delivered to industrial and electric generation
customers were 6 percent lower in 2001 than in 2000 and 9 percent low-
er in 2000 than in 1999. During 2001, industrial volumes included 43
million therms delivered to electric generation customers, up from 4 mil-
lion therms in 2000 and 33 million therms in 1999. The overall decline
in industrial sales and transportation volumes during 2001 was due to
several large customers switching to oil from gas and to plant shut-
downs and cut-backs in the manufacturing sector because of economic
conditions. Contracts for service to three electric generation customers
contributed $4.7 million of margin in 2001, or 11 cents a share, com-
pared to margin from electric generation of $0.1 million and $0.4 mil-
lion in 2000 and 1999, respectively. Industrial revenues in 2000 includ-
ed the positive effects of higher oil prices in an industrial schedule in
which rates vary with oil prices.

Other revenues include amortizations from regulatory accounts and
miscellaneous fee income. In 2001, other revenues amounted to a net
reduction to utility operating revenues of $2.3 million, including amor-
tizations from regulatory accounts covering conservation programs
($4.9 million), Year 2000 costs ($1.2 million) and property taxes ($0.2
million), partially offset by increased revenues from customer late pay-
ment and collection fees ($2.9 million) and miscellaneous revenues
($1.3 million).

In 2000, other revenues amounted to a net reduction to utility oper-
ating revenues of $4.0 million, including amortizations from regulato-
ry accounts covering conservation programs ($2.8 million), property tax-
es ($2.4 million) and Year 2000 costs ($1.2 million), partially offset by
increased revenues from customer late payment and collection fees
($1.5 million) and miscellaneous revenues ($0.9 million).

Cost of Gas

The cost per therm of gas sold was 35 percent higher in 2001 than
in 2000, and 27 percent higher in 2000 than in 1999, primarily due to
higher prices in the natural gas commodity market. The cost per therm
of gas sold includes gas purchases, gas drawn from storage inventory,
gains or losses from commodity hedges, demand costs, regulatory defer-
rals and company use.

NW Natural uses an active natural gas commodity hedge program
under the terms of its Derivatives Policy (see Note 1) to help manage its
gas commodity costs. During 2001, realized net gains from commodi-
ty swap and call option contracts were $57.6 million, compared to net
gains of $56.2 million in 2000. Net losses of $20.6 million were realized
in the fourth quarter of 2001, compared to net gains of $45.7 million in
the fourth quarter of 2000. Gains (losses) from commodity hedges are
recorded as reductions (increases) to the cost of gas.

NW Natural has a Purchased Gas Adjustment (PGA) tariff under
which its net income from Oregon operations is affected within defined
limits by changes in purchased gas costs. NW Natural absorbs 33 per-
cent of the higher cost of gas sold, or retains 33 percent of the lower cost,
in either case as compared to projections. The remaining 67 percent of
the higher or lower gas costs are recorded as deferred debits or credits
(regulatory assets or liabilities) for recovery from or refund to customers
in future rates. Net savings realized from gas purchases in 2001 totaled
$12.3 million, of which $8.2 million was deferred for refund to cus-
tomers and $4.1 million was recorded to earnings. These gas cost sav-
ings contributed 10 cents a share to earnings in 2001, while excess gas
costs in 2000 reduced earnings by 7 cents a share.

Under an agreement with the OPUC, revenues from off-system gas
sales are treated as a reduction of gas costs. These sales reduced the cost
of gas sold by $2.6 million in 2001, $3.0 million in 2000 and $1.7 mil-
lion in 1999.

Non-utility Operations

At Dec. 31,2001 and 2000, the Company had one active wholly-
owned subsidiary, Financial Corporation. Northwest Energy, which was
formed in 2001 to serve as the holding company for NW Natural and PGE
if the acquisition of PGE is completed, had no active operations in 2001.
One discontinued segment, Canor, a majority-owned subsidiary, was sold
in 2000 (see “Discontinued Segment;” below).

Financial Corporation

Financial Corporation’s operating results in 2001 were net income
of $0.7 million, compared to $0.1 million in 2000 and $0.5 million in
1999. The increase in net income from 2000 to 2001 was related to oper-
ating results from Financial Corporation’s investments in limited part-
nerships in solar electric, wind-power electric and hydroelectric gen-
eration projects in California. The decrease in income from 1999 to
2000 was primarily due to an adjustment to deferred taxes in 2000. The
Company’s investment in Financial Corporation at Dec. 31,2001, was
$7.9 million, compared to $7.2 million and $7.1 million at Dec. 31,2000
and 1999, respectively.

Discontinued Segment

During 2000, the Company sold its interest in Canor at a gain of
$2.4 million, equivalent to 9 cents a share (see Note 2). Net income from
Canor for 1999 was $0.4 million.

Gas Storage Services

NW Natural realized net income from gas storage services in 2001
of $2.1 million, or 8 cents a share, up from $0.1 million, or negligible
earnings per share in 2000. Gas storage services are provided to cus-
tomers using storage capacity not required from time to time for util-
ity services. NW Natural retains 80 percent of the net income before tax
from storage services and credits the remaining 20 percent to its utili-
ty customers.

Operating Expenses
Operations and Maintenance

Consolidated operations and maintenance expenses were $6.1 mil-
lion, or 8 percent, higher in 2001 than in 2000. The increase was caused
primarily by higher payroll costs due to wage and salary increases ($1.9
million), higher costs for employees health and pension benefits ($1.9
million), a charge to a litigation reserve ($1.7 million) resulting from
an unfavorable decision by the Oregon Supreme Court in a case involv-
ing a claim by a commercial customer (see Note 12) and higher uncol-
lectible accounts expense ($1.0 million).

Operations and maintenance expenses in 2000 were $4.6 million, or
6 percent, higher than in 1999. The increase was primarily due to cred-
its to a litigation reserve in 1999 ($4.9 million), increased payroll costs
($0.9 million) and accruals for environmental claims ($0.6 million) in
2000, partially offset by a lower bonus accrual ($1.3 millien) in 2000.

Taxes Other Than Income

Taxes other than income, which are comprised of property, fran-
chise, payroll and other taxes, increased $3.9 million, or 14 percent, in
2001. Property tax expense was $1.8 million, or 18 percent, higher than
in 2000 due to higher property tax rates and an increase in utility plant.
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Franchise taxes, which are based on gross revenues, increased $1.5 mil-
lion, or 12 percent, reflecting higher revenues due to an increase in NW
Natural’s customer base and rate increases effective in late 2000 and
2001. Regulatory fees and payroll tax expenses accounted for the remain-
ing $0.6 million increase in 2001.

Taxes other than income increased $3.7 million, or 15 percent, in 2000
compared to 1999. Franchise taxes increased $2.6 million, or 25 percent,
reflecting higher revenues due to an increase in NW Natural’s customer
base and rate increases effective in late 1999 and 2000. Property tax ex-
pense was $0.6 million, or 7 percent, higher than in 1999 due to increased
plant in service. Payroll tax expense was $0.3 million, or 9 percent, high-
er than in 1999 due to increased payroll.

Depreciation, Depletion and Amortization

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense increased $2.2
million, or 5 percent,in 2001, primarily due to a 5 percent ($67.7 million)
increase in utility plant and non-utility property.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense decreased $3.6
million, or 7 percent, in 2000 compared to 1999, primarily due to charges
in NW Natural’s 1999 depreciation expense relating to regulatory treat-
ment of a customer information system (CIS). CIS assets were written
down by $6.5 million in 1999 pursuant to the OPUC’s order in the Oregon
general rate case concluded in November 1999,and by a further $0.4 mil-
lion in 2000 pursuant to the WUTC’s order in the Washington general
rate case concluded in October 2000. Exclusive of these regulatory man-
dated charges, depreciation, depletion and amortization expense in-
creased $2.6 million, or 6 percent, in 2000 compared to 1999 due to an
increase in utility plant.

As a percentage of average plant and property, depreciation, deple-
tion and amortization expense was 3.5 percent in both 2001 and 2000
and 4.0 percent in 1999.

Other Income

Other income was $1.3 million in 2001, or $2.5 million lower than
in 2000, primarily due to lower interest income on deferred regulatory
account balances ($1.9 million) and lower miscellaneous non-operat-
ing income ($0.6 million).

Other income was $3.9 million in 2000, $1.0 million lower than in
1999, primarily due to a reduction in interest income on deferred reg-
ulatory account balances.

Interest Charges - Net

Net interest expense was $0.2 million higher in 2001 than in 2000.
Exclusive of a $1.0 million charge to interest expense as the result of an
unfavorable litigation decision (see Note 12), interest expense decreased
$0.8 million in 2001 due to lower average interest rates.

Interest charges increased $3.5 million, or 12 percent, in 2000 com-
pared to 1999, primarily due to an increase in long-term debt outstanding
in 2000 and a $1.7 million credit adjustment in 1999 relating to favor-
able decisions in litigation.

Allowance for Funds Used During Construction (AFUDC) represents
the cost of funds used during the construction of utility plant (see Note
1).In 2001, AFUDC reduced interest expense by $1.0 million compared
to $0.8 million in 2000 and $1.2 million in 1999. The weighted average
AFUDC rates were 6.2 percent in 2001 and 6.0 percent in both 2000 and
1999 (see “Financing Activities,” below).
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Income Taxes
The effective corporate income tax rates for 2001, 2000 and 1999
were 35.4 percent, 35.9 percent and 35.4 percent, respectively.

Redeemable Preferred and Preference Stock
Dividend Requirements

Redeemable preferred and preference stock dividend requirements
for 2001 and 2000 were both lower by $0.1 million, or 2 percent, compared
t0 2000 and 1999, respectively, due to annual sinking fund redemptions.

‘FINANCIAL CONDITION

Capital Structure

The Company’s goal is to maintain a capital structure comprised
of 45 to 50 percent common stock equity, 5 to 10 percent preferred and
preference stock and 45 to 50 percent short-term and long-term debt.
When additional capital is required, debt or equity securities are issued
depending upon both the
target capital structure and
market conditions. These
sources also are used to
meet long-term debt and -
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The Company’s goal is to maintain a
capital structure of 45 to 50 percent
common stock equity.

paper notes, which are sup-

ported by commercial bank

lines of credit (see Note 6). The Company has available through Sept.
30,2002 committed lines of credit totaling $170 million. The Company’s
lines of credit are renewed annually.

NW Natural’s lines of credit require that credit ratings be maintained
in effect at all times and that notice be given of any change in its com-
mercial paper ratings. A change in NW Natural’s commercial paper
rating is not an event of default, nor is the maintenance of a specific min-
imum level of credit rating a condition to drawing upon the lines of cred-
it. However, interest rates on any loans outstanding under NW Natural’s
bank lines are tied to credit ratings, which would increase or decrease
the cost of bank debt, if any, when ratings are changed. The lines of cred-
it require NW Natural to maintain a specified ratio of indebtedness to
total capitalization. Failure to comply with this covenant would entitle
the banks to terminate their lending commitments and to accelerate the
maturity of all amounts outstanding. At Dec. 31,2001, NW Natural was
in compliance with this covenant.




The following table shows NW Natural’s contractual obligations by maturity and type of obligation:

Commercial Preferred Long-term Total

Paper and Capital Gas Supply Contractual

Thousands Supported by Preference Long-term Lease Operating Purchase Cash
Payments due in years ending Dec. 31, Lines of Credit Stack Debt Obligations Leases Obligations Obligations
2002 $ 108,291 $ 25750 $ 40,000 $ 919 $ 2930 § 85012 $ 154,611
2003 - 750 20,000 272 2,760 76,539 100,321
2004 - 750 - 35 2,643 49,906 53,334
2005 - 750 15,000 - 2,571 45,501 63,822
2006 - 750 8,000 - 966 40,948 50,664
Total 2002 - 2006 108,291 28,750 83,000 1,226 11,870 297,906 422,752
Thereafter - 5,250 335,377 - 3,447 302,455 646,529
Less: imputed interest - - - (80) - (130,087} (130,167}
Total $ 108,291 $ 34,000 3 418,377 § 1,146 § 15317 $ 470,274 § 939,114

One of Financial Corporation’s lines of credit in the amount of $10
million, which is guaranteed by NW Natural, provides that it is an event
of default if any government authority takes action which the bank
believes has a material adverse effect on NW Natural’s financial con-
dition or ability to repay, or if a material adverse change occurs in NW
Natural’s business condition.

NW Natural’s capital expenditures are primarily related to utility con-
struction resulting from customer growth and system improvements.
Over the five-year period 2002 through 2006, these expenditures are
estimated at between $450 million and $500 million. In addition, NW
Natural has certain long-term contractual obligations that require an
adequate source of funding. These capital and contractual expendi-
tures are financed through cash from operations and from the issuance
of short-term debt, which is periodically refinanced through the sale of
long-term debt or equity securities.

There are no credit rating triggers or stock price provisions that re-
quire the acceleration of debt repayment under the Company’s Mort-
gage and Deed of Trust or other long-term indebtedness. Also, there
are no rating triggers or stock price provisions contained in contracts
or other agreements with third parties, except for commodity-price swap
agreements with two approved counter-parties under NW Naturals
Derivatives Policy, which require the affected party to provide substi-
tute collateral such as cash, guaranty or letters of credit if credit rat-
ings are lowered to non-investment grade. The Company has no other
material off-balance sheet obligations, except for certain lease and pur-
chase commitments (see table above, and Note 12).

The financing commitment obtained to provide loans to finance the
cash portion of the purchase price for PGE requires, as a condition to
making such loans, that PGE, NW Natural and Holding Company have
credit ratings meeting specified levels at the time such loans are to be
made and that other criteria of expected financial performance be demon-
strated to the satisfaction of the lenders.

Cash Flows
Operating Activities

Continuing operations provided net cash of $71.5 million in 2001
compared to $87.2 million in 2000. The 18 percent decrease was due to
increased cash from operations before working capital changes ($8.0
million), offset by higher working capital requirements ($23.7 million).
The increase in cash from continuing operations before working capi-
tal changes was due to a larger decrease in deferred gas costs ($23.1 mil-
lion),an increase in income from continuing operations ($2.4 million)
and an increase in depreciation, depletion and amortization in 2001
{$2.2 million), partially offset by a decrease in deferred investment tax
credits and income taxes ($16.7 million) and a smaller decrease in reg-

ulatory accounts and other ($3.0 million). The increase in working cap-
ital requirements was due to a decrease in accounts payable ($82.5 mil-
lion), partially offset by smaller increases in other current assets and
liabilities ($19.5 million), accounts receivable ($13.4 million), inventories
($10.5 million), accrued unbilled revenues ($1.9 million), and a larger
increase in accrued interest and taxes ($13.4 million).

Cash provided by continuing operations in 2000 was $87.2 million
compared to $108.2 million in 1999. An increase in cash from opera-
tions before working capital changes ($14.8 million) was offset by high-
er working capital requirements ($35.8 million). The reduction in cash
provided by continuing operations between 1999 and 2000 was prima-
rily due to cash flows relating to NW Natural’s construction pursuant
to a development contract of a new headquarters building for the Port
of Portland. Progress payments by the Port totaling $18.8 million in
1999 had the effect of reducing working capital requirernents in that year.
The Port’s final payment of $1.2 million at closing on the sale of the
building in 2000 increased working capital requirements by that amount
in 2000. Cash used in construction of the building was recorded in both
1999 and 2000 as an investment in non-utility property (see “Investing
Activities,” below). NW Natural used a portion of the Port’s progress
payments to pay off the balance outstanding under a bank line of cred-
it arranged for construction of the building ($12.3 million), contribut-
ing to a reduction in short-term debt in 1999.

The Company has lease and purchase commitments relating to its
operating activities which are financed with cash flows from opera-
tions (see Note 12).

Investing Activities

Cash requirements for investing activities in 2001 totaled $87.3 mil-
lion, up from $31.0 million in 2000, primarily due to proceeds from the
sales of Canor ($35 million) and the Port of Portland building ($20 mil-
lion) in 2000. Cash requirements for utility construction totaled $71.9
million, down $8.5 million from 2000. The decrease in cash requirements
for utility construction in 2001 was primarily the result of the comple-
tion of another phase in the expansion of NW Natural’s Mist gas stor-
age system in December 2000 ($8.7 million).

Cash requirements for investing activities in 2000 totaled $31.0 mil-
lion, down from $118.9 million in 1999. Cash requirements for utility
construction totaled $80.4 million, down $28.7 million from 1999. The
decrease in cash requirements for utility construction in 2000 resulted
primarily from lower expenditures for completion of another expansion
of the Mist gas storage system ($24.8 million), lower construction over-
head ($1.9 million) and reduced expenditures for computer hardware
and software ($1.6 million).
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NW Natural’s utility construction expenditures are estimated to total
$83 million for 2002. Over the five-year period 2002 through 2006, these
expenditures are estimated at between $450 million and $500 million.
The level of capital expenditures over the next five years reflects projected
customer growth, system replacement and reinforcement projects, and
the development of additional gas storage facilities including the exten-
sion of a pipeline that moves gas from NW Natural’s Mist Storage Field
into growing portions of its service area. An estimated 60 percent of
the required funds is expected to be internally generated over the five-
year period, with the remainder funded through a combination of long-
term debt and equity securities with short-term debt providing lig-
uidity and bridge financing.

Investments in non-utility property in 2001 ($9.6 million) and 2000
($6.9 million) included expenditures for the Company’s gas storage ex-
pansion project utilized for interstate storage services. Investments in
non-utility property in 2000 also included final payments for the con-
struction of the Port of Portland building. Total proceeds from the sale
of the building in 2000 ($20.0 million) were recognized as proceeds from
sale of assets.

Investing activities in 2001 also included $9.6 million in financial ad-
visory and legal fees, loan arrangement fees and other costs relating to
the Company’s contract for the purchase of PGE. In the event that the
acquisition is terminated, the Company would recognize these costs as
current expenses.

The discontinued segment provided net cash of $34.8 million in
2000 from the sale of Canor.

Financing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities in 2001 totaled $15 million,
compared to cash used in financing activities in 2000 of $55 million.
Factors contributing to the $70 million difference were retirements of
long-term debt of $20 million in 2001 compared to $60 million in 2000,
and an increase in short-term debt ($52 million) in 2001 compared to
areduction in short-term debt ($38 million) in 2000, partially offset by
a reduction in long-term debt issued ($18 million) in 2001 compared
to 2000 ($75 million).

Cash used in financing activities in 2000 totaled $55 million, com-
pared to cash provided by financing activities in 1999 of $13 million.
Factors contributing to the $68 million difference were retirements of
long-term debt of $60 million in 2000 compared to $10 million in 1999,
and a reduction in short-term debt ($38 million) in 2000 compared to
anincrease in short-term debt ($13 million) in 1999, partially offset by
an increase in long-term debt issued ($35 million) in 2000.

NW Natural sold $18 million of its secured Medium-Term Notes,
Series B (MTNs), in June 2001 and used the proceeds, together with a
$52 million increase in short-term borrowings, to re-fund long-term
debt ($20 million) and provide cash for investments in utility plant.

NW Natural sold $75 million of its MTNs in 2000. It used $50 mil-
lion of the proceeds to redeem higher-cost debt, $10 million to re-fund
maturing long-term debt and the remainder to meet capital require-
ments for the Company’s ongoing construction program and to reduce
short-term debt.
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In May 2000, the Company commenced a program to repurchase up
to 2 million shares, or up to $35 million in value, of NW Natural’s com-
mon stock through a repurchase program which has been extended
through May 2002. The purchases are made in the open market or
through privately negotiated transactions. The Company used $5.8 mil-
lion for the repurchase of 246,700 shares under the program in 2001.
No shares were repurchased during the six months ended Dec. 31,2001
while the Company was negotiating the purchase of PGE. Since the pro-
gram’s inception in 2000, the Company has repurchased 355,400 shares
of common stock at a total cost of $8.2 million.

Ratios of Earnings to Fixed Charges

For the years ended Dec. 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, the Company’s
ratios of earnings to fixed charges, computed using the Securities and
Exchange Commission method, were 3.14, 3.14 and 3.12, respectively.
For this purpose, earnings consist of net income before taxes plus fixed
charges. Fixed charges consist of interest on all indebtedness, the amor-
tization of debt expense and discount or premium, and the estimated
interest portion of rentals charged to income.

Environmental Matters

NW Natural owns property in Linnton, Oregon that is the site of a
former gas manufacturing plant that was closed in 1956 (the Linnton
site). In recent years, the Linnton site has been under voluntary inves-
tigation by NW Natural for environmental contaminants under pro-
gram oversight by the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality
(ODEQ).NW Natural has recorded liabilities totaling $4.0 million for the
estimated costs of investigation and interim remediation at the Linnton
site, including consultants’ fees, ODEQ oversight reimbursement and
legal fees, of which $3.0 million had been spent as of Dec. 31,2001. In
2000, NW Natural recorded a $1.4 million receivable representing an esti-
mate of the costs for investigation and interim remediation at the
Linnton site that NW Natural expects to recover from insurance.

NW Natural previously owned property adjacent to the Linnton site
that now is the location of a manufacturing plant owned by Wacker
Siltronic Corporation (the Wacker site). In October 2000, the ODEQ issued
an order requiring Wacker and NW Natural to determine the nature
and extent of releases of hazardous substances to Willamette River sed-
iments from the Wacker site. NW Natural has recorded a liability of
$0.3 million for its estimated costs of the investigation and initial reme-
diation on the Wacker site.

In 1998, the ODEQ and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
(EPA) completed a study of sediments in a 5.5 mile segment of
the Willamette River (the Portland Harbor) that includes the area adja-
cent to the Linnton site and the Wacker site. In 2000, the EPA listed the
Portland Harbor as a Superfund site and notified the Company that it
is a potentially responsible party. NW Natural recorded a liability of
$0.6 million in 2000 and, based on a revised estimate of NW Natural’s
share of the lower end of a range of probable liability, recorded an addi-
tional $0.5 million in 2001 for its estimated share of the costs of reme-
dial investigation of the Portland Harbor. Available information is insuf-
ficient to determine either the total amount of liability for investigation
and remediation of the Portland Harbor or the higher end of a range for
NW Natural’s estimated share of that liability.




NW Natural expects that its costs of further investigation and reme-
diation for which it may be responsible with respect to the Linnton site,
the Wacker site and the Portland Harbor Superfund site, if any, should
be recoverable, in large part, from insurance. In the event these costs are
not recovered from insurance, NW Natural will seek recovery through
future rates.

The Company’s primary market risk exposures associated with
activities involving derivative financial instruments and other finan-
cial instruments are natural gas commodity price risk, foreign curren-
cy exchange risk and interest rate risk. Derivative financial instruments
are used as tools to mitigate certain of these market risks (see Note 11).
Such instruments are used for hedging purposes, not for trading pur-
poses. Market risks associated with the derivative financial instru-
ments are monitored by management personnel who do not directly
enter into these contracts and by a committee of the Board of Directors.

Physical and Financial Commaodity, Foreign Currency
and Interest Rate Transactions

NW Natural enters into short-term and long-term natural gas
purchase contracts with demand and commodity fixed-price and float-
ing-price components, along with associated short-term and long-
term natural gas transportation contracts. Foreign currency forward
contracts are used to hedge against foreign exchange rate fluctuations
on purchases made under these contracts that are denominated in
Canadian dollars.

Historically, NW Natural has taken physical delivery of at least the
minimum quantities specified in its natural gas purchase contracts.
The contracts are subject to annual re-pricing, a process that is intend-
ed to reflect anticipated market price trends during the next year. NW
Natural’s PGA mechanism in Oregon provides for the recovery from
customers of actual commodity costs in comparison with established
benchmark costs, except that NW Natural absorbs 33 percent of the
higher cost of gas sold, or retains 33 percent of the lower cost, in either
case as compared to projections.

At Dec. 31,2001, differences between notional values and fair values
with respect to NW Natural’s open positions in derivative financial
instruments were not material to the Company’s financial position or
results of operations because of the treatment of these instruments in
regulatory mechanisms relating to gas costs (see “Cost of Gas,” above,
and Notes 1 and 11). However, to the degree that market risks exist due
to potential adverse changes in commodity prices and foreign exchange
rates in relation to these financial and physical contracts, the Company
considers the risks to be:

Commodity Price Risk

The prices of natural gas commodity are subject to fluctuations due
to unpredictable factors including weather, pipeline transportation con-
gestion and other factors that affect short-term supply and demand.
Natural gas commodity swap and cap agreements are used to convert
certain long-term gas purchase contracts from floating prices to fixed
prices. At Dec. 31,2001 and 2000, notional amounts under natural gas
commodity swap and cap agreements totaled $260.6 million and $157.8
million, respectively. As of Dec. 31, 2001, six commodity agreements
extended beyond Dec. 31, 2002. If all of the commodity swap and cap
agreements had been settled on Dec. 31,2001, a loss of $111.8 million
would have been realized (see Note 11).

Foreign Currency Risk

The costs of natural gas commodity and certain pipeline services
purchased from Canadian suppliers are subject to changes in the val-
ue of Canadian currency in relation to U. S. currency. Foreign currency
forward contracts are used to hedge against fluctuations in exchange
rates with respect to purchases of natural gas from Canadian suppliers.
AtDec.31,2001 and 2000, notional amounts under foreign currency for-
ward contracts totaled $10.2 million and $34.1 million, respectively. As
of Dec. 31,2001, no foreign currency forward contracts extended beyond
Dec. 31,2002.If all of the foreign currency forward contracts had been
settled on Dec.31,2001,a loss of $0.1 million would have been realized
(see Note 11).

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk relates to new debt financing needed to fund cap-
ital requirements, including maturing debt securities, and to the issuance
of commercial paper. Interest rate risk is managed through the issuance
of fixed-rate debt with varying maturities and the re-funding of debt
through optional redemption when interest rates are favorable. No deriv-
ative financial instruments to hedge interest rates were in place at Dec.
31,2001 or 2000.
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Management’s Responsibility for Financial Statements

The financial statements in this report were prepared by manage-
ment, which is responsible for their objectivity and integrity. The state-
ments have been prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America and, where appro-
priate, reflect informed estimates based on judgments of management.
The responsibility of the Company’s independent accountants is to ren-
der an independent report on the financial statements.

The Company’s system of internal accounting controls is designed
to provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and trans-
actions are executed in accordance with management’s authorizations,
that transactions are recorded to permit the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with orders of regulatory authorities and gen-
erally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America
and that accountability for assets is maintained. The Company’s system
of internal controls has provided such reasonable assurances during
the periods reported herein. The system includes written policies, pro-
cedures and guidelines, an organization structure that segregates duties
and an established program for monitoring the system by internal audi-
tors. In addition, the Company has prepared and annually distributes
to its employees a Code of Ethics covering its policies for conducting
business affairs in a lawful and ethical manner. Ongoing review pro-
grams are carried out to ensure compliance with these policies.

Report of Independent Accountants

To the Board of Directors and
Shareholders of NW Natural

The Board of Directors, through its Audit Committee (the Commit-
tee), oversees management’s financial reporting responsibilities. The
Committee meets regularly with management, the internal auditors,
and representatives of the Company’s independent accountants. Both
internal auditors and independent accountants have free and inde-
pendent access to the Committee and the Board of Directors. No mem-
ber of the Committee is an employee of the Company. The Committee
reports the results of its activities to the full Board of Directors. Annually,
the Committee recommends the nomination of independent account-
ants to the Board of Directors for shareholder approval.

ey

Richard G. Reiten
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

S priee RALA Tt

Bruce R. DeBolt
Senior Vice President, Finance, and Chief Financial Officer

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of income, of earnings invested in the
business, of cash flows and of capitalization present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Northwest Natural Gas Company {doing
business as NW Natural) and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31,2001 and 2000, and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accept-
ed in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall finan-
cial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Notes 1 and 11 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its method of accounting for derivative instru-
ments as of January 1,2001.

PRICEVATERHOUSE(QOPERS

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
February 15,2002
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Consolidated Statements of Income

Thousands, except per share amounts (year ended December 31) 2001 2000 1999
Operating revenues:
Gross operating revenues $ 650,252 $ 532,110 $ 455,834
Cost of sales 374,241 274,160 212,197
Net operating revenues 276,011 257,950 243,637
Operating expenses:
Operations and maintenance 83,920 77,817 73,209
Taxes other than income taxes 32,240 28,351 24,652
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 49,640 47,440 51,008
Total operating expenses 165,800 153,608 148,869
Income from continuing operations 110,211 104,342 94,768
Other income 1,334 3,860 4816
Interest charges - net 33,805 33,561 30,052
Income before income taxes 77,740 74,641 69,532
Income taxes 27,553 26,829 24,591
Net income from continuing operations 50,187 47,812 44,941
Discontinued segment:
Income from discontinued segment — net of tax - - 355
Gain on sale of discontinued segment ~ net of tax - 2,412 -
Net income 50,187 50,224 45,296
Redeemable preferred and preference stock dividend requirements 2,401 2,456 2,515
Earnings applicable to common stock $ 47,786 $ 47,768 § 42,781
Average common shares outstanding 25,159 25,183 24,976
Basic earnings per share of common stock:
From continuing operations $ 1.90 $ 1.80 $ 1.70
From discontinued segment - - 0.01
From gain on sale of discontinued segment - 0.10 -
Total basic earnings per share $ 1.90 $ 1.90 $ 1.71
Diluted earnings per share of common stock: :
From continuing operations $ 1.88 $ 1.79 $ 1.69
From discontinued segment - - 0.01
From gain on sale of discontinued segment - 0.09 -
Total diluted earnings per share $ 1.88 $ 1.88 $ 1.70
Dividends per share of common stock $ 1245 $ 1.24 $ 1225
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
E
. Consolidated Statements of Earnings Invested in the Business
Thousands (year ended December 31) 2001 2000 1999
Earnings invested in the business:
Balance at beginning of year $ 134,189 $ 118,711 $ 106,513
Net income 50,187 $ 50,187 50,224 $ 50,224 45,296 $ 4529
Cash dividends paid:
Redeemable preferred and preference stock (2,410) (2,466) (2,525)
Common stock (31,307) (31,198) (30,569)
Common stock repurchased (2,688) (1,080) -
Common stock expense (21) (2) (4)
Balance at end of year $ 147,950 $ 134,189 $ 118,711
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):
Balance at beginning of year $ - $ (3,181) $ (2,460)
Other comprehensive income (loss) ~ net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments from
discontinued segment - - - - (721) (721)
Recognition of foreign currency translation adjustment
included in gain on sale of discontinued segment - - 3,181 3,181 - -
Minimum pension liability adjustment (148) (148) - - - -
Unrealized loss from price risk management activities (227) (227) - - - -
Comprehensive income $ 49,812 $ 53,405 $ 44,575
Balance at end of year $ (375) $ - $  (3,181)

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

Thousands (December 31) 2001 2000
Assets:
Plant and property:
Utillty plant $ 1,465,079  § 1,406,970
Less accumulated depreciation 514,629 478,138
Utility plant — net 950,450 928,832
Non-utility property 18,203 8,649
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion 3,677 3,451
Non-utility property - net 14,526 5,198
Total plant and property 964,976 934,030
Other investments 23,233 14,526
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 10,440 11,283
Accounts receivable, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of $1,962 in 2001 and $1,867 in 2000 64,722 60,753
Accrued unbilled revenue 57,749 45,619
Inventories of gas, materials and supplies 49,337 46,883
Prepayments and other current assets 28,086 22,834
Total current assets 210,334 187,372
Regulatory assets:
Income tax asset 48,469 49,515
Deferred gas costs receivable - 16,973
Unrealized loss on non-trading derivatives 111,641 -
Unamortized loss on debt redemption 6,970 7,433
Other 5,302 9,524
Total regulatory assets 172,382 83,445
Other assets:
Investment in life insurance 53,033 49,112
Other 11,064 10,228
Total other assets 64,097 59,340
Total assets $ 1,435,022 $ 1,278,713
Capitalization and liabilities:
Capitalization (see Consolidated Statements of Capitalization):
Common stock $ 79,889 $ 79,905
Premium on common stock 240,697 238,215
Earnings invested in the business 147,950 134,189
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (375) -
Total common stock equity 468,161 452,309
Redeemable preference stock 25,000 25,000
Redeemable preferred stock 9,000 9,750
Long-term debt 378,377 400,790
Total capitalization 880,538 887,849
Current liabilities:
Notes payable 108,291 56,263
Accounts payable 70,698 110,698
Long-term debt due within one year 40,000 20,000
Taxes accrued 22,539 8,066
Interest accrued 3,658 2,696
Other current and accrued liabilities 28,396 23,638
Total current liabilities 273,582 221,361
Regulatory liabilities
Customer advances 1,985 1,720
Deferred gas costs payable 10,089 -
Total regulatory liabilities 12,074 1,720
QOther liabilities:
Deferred income taxes 130,424 141,656
Fair value of non-trading derivatives 111,868 -
Deferred investment tax credits 8,682 9,538
Other 17,854 16,589
Total other liabilities 268,828 167,783
Commitments and contingencies (see Note 12) ~ -
Total capitalization and liabilities $ 1,435,022 $ 1,278,713

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Thousands (year ended December 31) 2001 2000 1999
Operating activities:
Net income from continuing operations $ 50,187 $ 47,812 $ 44,941
Adjustments to reconcile net income to cash provided by continuing operations:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 49,640 47,440 51,008
Gain on sale of assets - (491) -
Minimum pension liability adjustment (148) - -
Unrealized loss from price risk management activities (227) - -
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credits (12,088) 4,651 (5,015)
Equity in (earnings) losses of investments 321 221 (490)
Allowance for funds used during construction (959) (789) (1,153)
Deferred gas costs - net 27,062 3,977 6,845
Regulatory accounts and other - net 1,345 4,333 (3,795)
Cash from continuing operations before working capital changes 115,133 107,154 92,341
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable - net (3,969) (17,404) 792
Accrued unbilled revenue (12,130) (14,069) 2,708
Inventories of gas, materials and supplies (2,454) (12,964) (12,661)
Accounts payable (40,000) 42,535 16,910
Accrued interest and taxes 15,435 1,988 (4,916)
Other current assets and liabilities (494) (20,000) 12,992
Cash provided by continuing operating activities 71,521 87,240 108,166
Cash provided by operations of discontinued segment - - 46
Investing activities:
Acquisition and construction of utility plant assets (71,943) (80,444) (109,144)
Investment in non-utility property (9,554) (6,923) (10,713)
Deferred costs for pending purchase of PGE (9,557) - -
Proceeds from sale of discontinued segment - 34,756 -
Proceeds from sale of assets 3,256 21,012 -
Other investments 529 610 956
Cash used in investing activities (87,269) (30,989) (118,901)
Financing activities:
Common stock issued 5,157 4,826 5,356
Common stock repurchased (5,792) (2,441) -
Redeemable preferred stock retired (750) (814) (935)
Long-term debt issued 18,000 75,000 40,000
Long-term debt retired (20,000) (60,000) (10,000)
Change in short-term debt 52,028 (37,886) 12,717
Cash dividend payments:
Redeemable preferred and preference stock (2,410) (2,466) (2,525)
Common stock (31,307) (31,198) (30,569)
Foreign currency translation and capital stock expense (21) (2) (725)
Cash provided by (used in) financing activities 14,905 (54,981) 13,319
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (843) 1,270 2,630
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year 11,283 10,013 7,383
Cash and cash equivalents - end of year $ 10,440 $ 11,283 $ 10,013

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the period for:

Interest $ 33,034 $ 35592 $ 30,506
Income taxes $ 25,201 $ 22,552 $ 27,302
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash financing activities:
Conversion to common stock:
7-1/4 % Series of Convertible Debentures $ 413 $ 589 $ 359

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Capitalization

Thousands except share amounts (December 31) 2001 2000
Commeon stock equity:
Common stock - par value $3-1/6 per share, authorized 60,000,000 shares: $ 79,889 $ 79,905
outstanding — 2001, 25,228,074 shares; 2000, 25,233,424 shares
Premium on common stock 240,697 238,215
Earnings invested in the business 147,950 134,189
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (375) -
Total common stock equity 468,161 53% 452,309 51%
Redeemable preference stock, authorized 2,000,000 shares;
$6.95 Series, stated value $100 per share; outstanding - 2001,
250,000 shares; 2000, 250,000 shares 25,000 3% 25,000 3%
Redeemable preferred stock, authorized 1,500,000 shares;
$7.125 Series, stated value $100 per share; outstanding -
2001, 90,000 shares; 2000, 97,500 shares 9,000 1% 9,750 1%
Long-term debt:
Medium-Term Notes
First Mortgage Bonds:
6.620% Series B due 2001 - 10,000
8.050% Series A due 2002 10,000 10,000
6.750% Series B due 2002 10,000 10,000
5.550% Series B due 2002 20,000 20,000
6.400% Series B due 2003 20,000 20,000
6.340% Series B due 2005 5,000 5,000
6.380% Series B due 2005 5,000 5,000
6.450% Series B due 2005 5,000 5,000
6.050% Series B due 2006 8,000 -
6.800% Series B due 2007 10,000 10,000
6.500% Series B due 2008 5,000 5,000
7.450% Series B due 2010 25,000 25,000
6.665% Series B due 2011 16,000 -
8.260% Series B due 2014 10,000 10,000
7.000% Series B due 2017 40,000 40,000
6.600% Series B due 2018 22,000 22,000
8.310% Series B due 2019 19,000 10,000
7.630% Series B due 2019 20,000 20,000
9.050% Series A due 2021 10,000 10,000
7.250% Series B due 2023 20,000 20,000
7.500% Series B due 2023 4,000 4,000
7.520% Series B due 2023 11,000 11,000
7.720% Series B due 2025 20,000 20,000
6.520% Series B due 2025 10,000 10,000
7.050% Series B due 2026 20,000 20,000
7.000% Series B due 2027 20,000 20,000
6.650% Series B due 2027 29,000 20,000
6.650% Series B due 2028 10,000 10,000
7.740% Series B due 2030 20,000 20,000
7.850% Series B due 2030 10,000 10,000
Unsecured:
8.470% Series A due 2001 - 10,000
Convertible Debentures
7-1/4% Series due 2012 8,377 8,790
418,377 420,790
Less long-term debt due within one year 40,000 20,000
Total long-term debt 378,377 43% 400,790 _45%
Total capitalization $ 880,538 100% $ 887,849 100%

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

Organization and Principies of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include:
Regulated utility:

B Northwest Natural Gas Company (NW Natural)

Non-regulated subsidiary businesses:

B NNG Financial Corporation (Financial Corporation), a wholly-owned
subsidiary

B Northwest Energy Corporation (Northwest Energy or Holding Company),
awholly-owned subsidiary formed in 2001

W Canor Energy, Ltd. (Canor), a majority-owned subsidiary reclassified as
a discontinued segment in 1999 and sold in 2000

Together these businesses are referred to herein as the “Company.” Inter-
company accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

Investments in corporate joint ventures and partnerships in which the
Company’s ownership interest is 50 percent or less and over which the Com-
pany does not exercise control, are accounted for by the equity method or
the cost method (see Note 9).

Certain amounts from prior years have been reclassified to conform
with the 2001 presentation. These reclassifications had no impact on pri-
or year results of operations.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States of America requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported
amounts in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes.
Actual amounts could differ from those estimates and changes would be
reported in future periods. Management believes that the estimates used
are reasonable.

Industry Regulation

The Company’s principal business is the distribution of natural gas
which is regulated by the Oregon Public Utility Commission (OPUC) and
the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission (WUTC). Account-
ing records and practices conform to the requirements and uniform system
of accounts prescribed by these regulatory authorities in accordance with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 71, “Accounting
for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation.”

In applying SFAS No. 71, NW Natural has capitalized certain costs and
benefits as regulatory assets and liabilities pursuant to orders of the OPUC
or WUTC in general rate or expense deferral proceedings, to provide for re-
covery of revenues or expenses from, or refunds to, utility customers in
future periods. At Dec. 31,2001 and 2000, regulatory tax assets were $48.5
million and $49.5 million, respectively, while other regulatory assets and
liabilities (net) were $111.8 million and $32.2 million, respectively.

If NW Natural should determine in the future that all or a portion of
these regulatory assets and liabilities no longer meet the criteria for con-
tinued application of SFAS No. 71, it would be required to write off the re-
lated balances of its regulatory assets as a charge to its income statement.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued
SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets.” SFAS No. 141 requires business combinations ini-
tiated after June 30, 2001 to be accounted for using the purchase method
of accounting, It also specifies the types of acquired intangible assets that
are required to be recognized and reported separately from goodwill. SFAS
No. 142 requires goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite lives to be
tested for impairment at least annually rather than being amortized as pre-
viously required. SFAS No. 142 is effective for fiscal years beginning after
Dec. 15,2001. The Company is evaluating the impact these new standards

may have on its financial position or results of operations upon adoption
effective Jan. 1, 2002.

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset
Retirement Obligations” SFAS No. 143, which is effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15,2002, requires that obligations associated with the
retirement of a tangible long-lived asset be recorded as a liability when
those obligations are incurred, with the amount of the liability initially
measured at fair value. The liability for the asset retirement obligation is
recorded as a capitalized cost increasing the carrying amount of the relat-
ed long-lived asset. Over time, the liability is accreted to its present value
each period and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the
related asset. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this state-
ment upon its financial position and results of operations.

In October 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,” which is effective for fis-
cal years beginning after Dec. 15, 2001. SFAS No. 144 develops a single
accounting model for all long-lived assets disposed of and requires that
these assets be measured at the lower of book value or fair value less sell-
ing costs. SFAS No. 144 also expands the scope of discontinued operations
to include all components of an entity that can be distinguished from the
rest of the entity and will be eliminated from the ongoing operations of the
entity in a disposal transaction. Implementation of this statement is not
expected to have a material impact upon either the Company’s financial
position or results of operations.

Utility Plant

Utility plant for NW Natural is stated at cost (see Note 9). When a depre-
ciable unit of property is retired, the cost is removed from both utility plant
and accumulated depreciation together with the cost of removal, less any sal-
vage. No gain or loss is recognized upon normal retirement.

NW Natural’s provision for depreciation of utility property, which is
computed under the straight-line, age-life method in accordance with in-
dependent engineering studies and as approved by regulatory authorities,
approximated 3.5 percent of average depreciable plant in both 2001 and 2000
and 4.0 percent in 1999. The depreciation rate approximates the econom-
ic life of the utility property.

Certain additions to utility plant include an allowance for funds used
during construction (AFUDC), a non-cash item. AFUDC represents the cost
of funds borrowed during construction and is calculated using actual com-
mercial paper interest rates. If commercial paper borrowings are insufficient
to finance the total construction work in progress, then a composite rate of
interest on all debt, shown as a reduction to interest charges, and a return
on equity funds, shown as other income, is used to compute AFUDC. While
cash is not realized currently from AFUDC, it is realized in the ratemaking
process over the service life of the related property through increased rev-
enues resulting from higher rate base and higher depreciation expense.
NW Natural’s weighted average AFUDC rates were 6.2 percent in 2001 and
6.0 percent for both 2000 and 1999.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash on hand and highly liquid temporary investments with original matu-
rity dates of three months or less.

Revenue Recognition

Utility revenues are derived primarily from the sale and transportation
of natural gas. Utility revenue from gas sales and transportation is recog-
nized when the gas is delivered to and received by the customer. Estimated
revenues are accrued for gas deliveries not billed to customers from meter
reading dates to month end (unbilled revenue) and are reversed the fol-
lowing month when actual billings occur.

Revenues from non-utility services, including gas storage services, are
recognized upon delivery of the service to customers.
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Inventories
Inventories, consisting primarily of natural gas in storage, are stated at
the lower of average cost or net realizable value.

Derivatives Policy

NW Natural’s Derivatives Policy sets forth the guidelines for using select-
ed financial derivative products to support prudent risk management strate-
gies within designated parameters. The Policy allows for the use of deriv-
atives to manage commodity prices related to natural gas purchases, foreign
currency prices related to gas purchase commitments from Canada, oil or
propane commodity prices related to gas sales and transportation services
under rate schedules pegged to other commodities, and interest rates relat-
ed to long-term debt maturing in less than five years or expected to be issued
in future periods. NW Natural’s objectives for using derivatives are to de-
crease the volatility of earnings and cash flows associated with changes in
commodity prices, foreign currency prices and interest rates. Use of deriv-
atives is permitted only after the commodity price, exchange rate, and inter-
est rate exposures have been identified, are determined to exceed defined
tolerance levels and are considered to be unavoidable because they are nec-
essary to support normal business activities (see Note 11).The Policy is
intended to prevent speculative risk. NW Natural does not enter into deriv-
ative instruments for trading purposes and believes that any increase in
market risk created by holding derivatives should be offset by the exposures
they modify.

The Company adopted SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instru-
ments and Hedging Activities,” on Jan. 1, 2001. This statement establishes
accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments, including
certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and for hedg-
ing activities. SFAS No. 133 requires that an entity recognize derivatives as
either assets or labilities on the balance sheet and measure those instru-
ments at fair value. SFAS No. 133 also requires that changes in the fair val-
ue of a derivative be recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met.

NW Natural designates its derivatives as fair value or cash flow hedges
based upon criteria established by SFAS No. 133. For a derivative designat-
ed as a fair value hedge, the gain or loss is recognized in earnings in the peri-
od of change. For a derivative designated as a cash flow hedge, the effective
portion of the derivative gain or loss is initially reported in accumulated oth-
er comprehensive income (OCI) unless the derivative is subject to deferral
under NW Natural’s regulated taritfs with the OPUC or the WUTC. The
ineffective portion of the gain or loss in a cash flow hedge is reported in earn-
ings immediately. Effectiveness is measured by comparing changes in cash
flows of the hedged item to gains or losses on derivative instruments.

NW Natural’s primary hedging activities, 1.e. natural gas commodity
price and foreign currency exchange rates, are accounted for as cash flow
hedges under SFAS No. 133 and are subject to regulatory deferral pursuant
to SFAS No. 71. Unrealized gains and losses from mark-to-market valua-
tions of these contracts are reported as derivative assets or liabilities and
offset by a corresponding deferred account balance included under “Regula-
tory assets.” Due to their regulatory deferral treatment, effective portions
of changes in the fair value of these derivatives are not recorded in OCl but
are recognized as a regulatory asset or liability. Ineffective portions of changes
in the fair value for these contracts are recognized in current earnings.

NW Natural documents all relationships between its hedge contracts and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and strategy. This
process includes specific identification of the type of contract, the details
of the hedge transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the
hedging instrument’s effectiveness will be measured. Both at the inception
of the hedge and on an ongoing basis, NW Natural measures the effective-
ness of the derivatives used in hedge transactions.

32 NW NATURAL

Income Taxes

NW Natural uses the balance sheet method of accounting for deferred
income taxes. Deferred tax liabilities and assets reflect the expected future
tax consequences, based on enacted tax law, of temporary differences be-
tween the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting
amounts (see Note 8).

Consistent with rate and accounting orders of regulatory authorities,
deferred income taxes are not currently collected for those temporary in-
come tax differences where the prescribed regulatory accounting methods
do not provide for current recovery in rates. NW Natural has recorded a reg-
ulatory tax asset for amounts pending recovery from customers in future
rates. These amounts are primarily differences between the book and tax
bases of net utility plant in service. This asset balance was $48.5 million and
$49.5 million at Dec. 31,2001 and 2000, respectively.

Investment tax credits on utility property additions and leveraged leas-
es which reduce income taxes payable are deferred for financial statement
purposes and are amortized over the life of the related property or lease.
Investment and energy tax credits generated by non-regulated subsidiaries
are amortized over a period of one to five years.

Other Income

Other income consists of interest income, gain on sale of assets, invest-
ment income of Financial Corporation, and other miscellaneous income
from merchandise sales, rents, an aircraft lease and other items.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are computed based on the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding each year. Diluted earnings per
share reflect the potential effects of the conversion of convertible debentures
and the exercise of stock options. Diluted earnings are calculated as follows:

Thousands, except per share amounts 2001 2000 1999
Earnings applicable to common stock $ 47,786 $ 47,768 $ 42,781

Debenture interest less taxes 370 389 415
Net income available for diluted common stock  $ 48,156 $ 48,157 § 43,196
Average common shares outstanding 25,159 25,183 24,976

Stock options 32 13 21

Convertible debentures 421 442 471
Diluted average common shares outstanding 25,612 25,638 25,468
Diluted earnings per share of commeon stock $ 188 5§ 18 § 170

2. CONSOLIDATED SUBSH
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At Dec. 31,2001, the Company had one active subsidiary, Financial
Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary. Northwest Energy, which was
formed in 2001 to serve as the holding company for NW Natural and PGE
if the acquisition of PGE is completed, had no active operations in 2001.
One discontinued segment, Canor, a majority-owned subsidiary, was sold
in January 2000.

The Company principally operates in a business segment consisting of
the distribution of natural gas (“Utility”). Another segment, which was im-
material prior to Jan. 1,2001, consists of natural gas storage services pro-
vided to interstate customers using certain storage capacity not required from
time to time for service to utility customers (“Gas Storage”). The remaining
segment primarily consists of non-regulated investments, including alter-
native energy projects in California, oil and gas exploration properties which
were sold in 2000,a Boeing 737-300 aircraft leased to Continental Airlines
and deferred costs in the pending purchase of PGE (“Other”).




NNG Financial Corporation

Financial Corporation has several financial investments, including in-
vestments as a limited partner in solar electric generating systems, wind-
power electric generating projects, a hydroelectric facility and low-income
housing projects. In 2000, Financial Corporation sold its remaining inter-
ests in certain gas producing properties in the western United States (see
Note 9).

Canor Energy, Ltd.

On Jan. 26, 2000, the Company sold its interest in Canor, an Alberta,
Canada corporation that had been engaged in natural gas and oil ex-
ploration, development and production in Alberta and Saskatchewan,
Canada. The after-tax gain from the sale was $2.4 million, net of Canadian
tax on dividends ($0.6 million) and U.S. income tax ($2.8 million), and is
shown as gain on sale of discontinued segment.

The Company’s consolidated financial statements for 1999 were reclas-
sified to reflect Canor as a discontinued segment. Accordingly, Canor’s oper-
ating revenues and expenses are included in income from discontinued
segment for 1999, and its cash flows are reported as cash provided by oper-
ations of, and proceeds from sale of, discontinued segment.

Segment Information
The following table presents information about reportable segments for
2001, 2000 and 1999. Inter-segment transactions are insignificant.

Gas

Thousands Utility Storage Other Total
2001
Net operating revenues $271,473 $ 4,368 § 170 $276,011
Depreciation, depletion and

amortization 49,413 227 - 49,640
Other operating expenses

(income) 115,708 489 (37) 116,160
Income from operations 106,352 3,652 207 110,211
Income (loss) from financial

investments - - (321) (321)
Net income from continuing

operations 47,313 2,112 762 50,187
Total assets at Dec. 31 1,391,156 14,243 29,623 1,435,022
2000

Net operating revenues $257,361 $§ 258 § 331 $257,950

Depreciation, depletion and

amortization 47,430 10 - 47,440
Other operating expenses 106,027 81 60 106,168
Income from operations 103,904 167 271 104,342
Income (loss) from financial

investments ~ - (221) (221)
Net income from continuing

operations 47,519 102 191 47,812
Gain on sale of discontinued

segment - - 2,412 2,412
Total assets at Dec. 31 1,252,747 4,919 21,047 1,278,713
1999
Net operating revenues $ 243,269 $ - § 368 $243,637
Depreciation, depletion and

amortization 50,841 - 167 51,008
Other operating expenses 97,684 - 177 97,861
Income from operations 94,744 - 24 94,768
Income (loss) from financial

investments - - (82) (82)
Net income from continuing

operations 44,323 - 618 44,941
Net income from discontinued

segment - - 355 355
Total assets at Dec. 31 1,197,673 - 46,750 1,244,423

3,

Commeon Stock
At Dec. 31,2001, NW Natural had reserved 191,277 shares of common
stock for issuance under the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 725,953 shares
under its Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan, 769,058 shares
under its Restated Stock Option Plan (formerly the 1985 Stock Optien Plan)
(see Note 4),481,571 shares for future conversions of its 7-1/4% Convertible
Debentures and 3,000,000 shares under the Shareholder Rights Plan.

Redeemable Preference Stock
The $6.95 Series of Preference Stock is not redeemable prior to Dec. 31,
2002, but is subject to mandatory redemption on that date.

Redeemable Preferred Stock

The mandatory preferred stock redemption requirements aggregate
$0.8 million in each of 2002,2003,2004, 2005 and 2006. These requirements
are non-cumulative. At any time NW Natural is in default on any of its
obligations to make the prescribed sinking fund payments, it may not pay
cash dividends on the common stock or the preference stock. Upon invol-
untary liquidation, all series of redeemable preferred stock are entitled to
their stated value.

The redeemable preferred stock is callable at stipulated prices, plus
accrued dividends. On or after May 1, 2001, shares of the $7.125 Series are
redeemable at a price of $103.325 per share, decreasing each year thereafter
to $100 per share on or after May 1, 2008.

Stock Repurchase Program

In May 2000, the Company commenced a program to repurchase up to
2 million shares, or up to $35 million in value, of its common stock through
arepurchase program that was extended through May 2002. Purchases are
made in the open market or through privately negotiated transactions. As
of Dec. 31, 2001, the Company had repurchased 355,400 shares of com-
mon stock at a total cost of $8.2 million.

The following table shows the changes in the number of shares of NW
Natural’s capital stock and the premium on common stock for the years
2001,2000 and 1999:

Shares Premium on
Redeemable Redeemable  common
Common preference  preferred stock
stock stock stock (thousands)
Balance, Dec. 31, 1998 24,853,121 250,000 114,985 $229,650
Sales to employees 13,619 - -~ 295
Sales to stockholders 188,821 - ~ 4,028
Exercise of stock options — net 18,355 - - 334
Conversion of convertible
debentures to common 18,022 - - 301
Sinking fund purchases - - 9,342) -
Balance, Dec. 31, 1999 25,091,938 250,000 105,643 234,608
Sales to employees 14,696 - - 278
Sales to stockholders 199,920 - - 3,769
Exercise of stock options - net 5,990 - - 81
Conversion of convertible
debentures to common 29,580 - - 495
Stock repurchases (108,700) - - (1,016)
Sinking fund purchases - - (8,143) -
Balance, Dec. 31,2000 25,233,424 250,000 97,500 238,215
Sales to employees 30,952 - - 498
Sales to stockholders 177,624 - - 3,854
Exercise of stock options — net 12,289 - - 110
Conversion of convertible
debentures to common 20,485 -~ - 343
Stock repurchases (246,700) - - (2,323)
Sinking fund purchases - ~ (7,500) -
Balance, Dec. 31,2001 25,228,074 250,000 90,000 $ 240,697
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NW Natural has the following stock-based compensation plans: the
Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP); the Restated Stock Option Plan (Restated
SOP); the Employee Stock Purchase Plan (ESPP); and the Non-Employee
Directors Stock Compensation Plan (NEDSCP). These plans are designed
to promote stock ownership in the Company by employees, officers and
directors. NW Natural applies Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion
No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees;” and related interpreta-
tions in its accounting for stock-based compensation plans.

NW Natural’s shareholders approved the LTIP effective Jan. 1, 2001, to
provide a flexible, competitive compensation program for employees, offi-
cers and outside directors. An aggregate of 500,000 shares of common stock
was authorized for grants under the LTIP as stock bonus, restricted stock
or performance-based stock awards. Shares awarded under the ITIP are pur-
chased on the open market. To date, NW Natural has granted two perform-
ance-based awards, one based on a two-year performance period (2001-
2002) and the other based on a three-year performance period (2001-2003),
and a restricted stock award. At Dec. 31, 2001, the aggregate target award
for each of the performance-based awards was 40,000 shares and the max-
imum award was 80,000 shares each. The final award depends on the attain-
ment of certain return on equity performance goals. The restricted stock
award consists of 4,500 shares granted in 2001 with a vesting period of 65
months. The LTIP stock awards are compensatory awards for which com-
pensation expense is accrued based upon the market value for performance
shares earned, or a pro rata amortization over the vesting period for restrict-
ed shares. Total compensation expense accrued under the LTTP in 2001
was $0.2 million, including accrued dividends.

The Restated SOP authorizes an aggregate of 1,200,000 shares of com-
mon stock for issuance as incentive or non-statutory stock options. These
options may be granted only to officers and key employees designated by
a committee of NW Natural's Board of Directors. All options are granted
at an option price not less than the market value at the date of grant and
may be exercised for a period not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.
Option holders may exchange shares they have owned for at least one year,
at the current market price, to purchase shares at the option price.

Since inception in 1985, options on 937,171 shares of common stock have
been granted at prices ranging from $11.75 to $27.875 per share, and
options on 110,921 shares have expired. In accordance with APB Ne. 25, no
compensation expense is recognized for the Restated SOP or the ESPP. If
compensation expense for awards under the Restated SOP and the ESPP had
been determined based on fair value at the grant dates using the method
prescribed by SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,”
net income and earnings per share would have been reduced to the pro
forma amounts indicated below:

2001 2000 1999

Earnings applicable to common stock ($000):

As reported $ 47,786 $ 47,768 § 42,781

Pro forma 47,232 47,190 42,525
Basic earnings per share

As reported $ 190 § 19 § 171

Pro forma 1.88 1.87 1.70
Diluted earnings per share

As reported $ 188 $ 188 8§ L70

Pro forma 1.86 1.86 1.69

34 NW NATURAL

For purposes of determining the pro forma expense, the fair value of each
stock option is estimated on the grant date using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for
grants in 2001 and 2000, respectively: a dividend yield of 4.9 and 4.7 per-
cent; expected volatility of 31.0 and 31.4 percent; and, for grants made in
both years, a risk-free interest rate of 5 percent and expected lives of sev-
en years. No stock options were granted in 1999. The fair value at Dec. 31,
2001 of the stock options granted during 2001 was $17.34.

Information regarding the Restated SOP’s activity is summarized as
follows:

— Exercise Price Per Share —

Weighted

Shares Range Average

Options outstanding at Dec. 31,1998 320,032 $16.59-27.875 §24.06
Exercised (19,820) 20.17 - 24.000  21.81
Expired {10,000) 27.875 27.88
Options outstanding at Dec. 31,1999 290,212 16.59 - 27.875  24.08
Granted 153,000 20.25-22.875 2036
Exercised (14,207) 16.59 - 24.000  22.63
Expired (13,000) 20.25-27.875 2436
Options outstanding at Dec. 31,2000 416,005 20.17 - 27.875  22.75
Granted 15,000 24.91 2491
Exercised (12,289) 20.17 - 20920 20.36
Expired (31,625) 20.25-27.875 2431
Options outstanding at Dec. 31,2001 387,091 20.25 -27.875  22.79

The weighted average characteristics of outstanding stock options at Dec.
31,2001 were as follows:

-————— Qutstanding Options — Exercisable Options —
Range of Weighted
Exercise Remaining Average
Prices Shares Life Shares Price
$20.250 - $27.875 387,091 6.10 273,891  § 2354

The ESPP, as amended in 2000, allows employees to purchase common
stock at 85 percent of the average bid and ask market price on the sub-
scription date which is set annually. Each eligible employee may purchase
up to 900 shares through payroll deduction over a six to 12-month period.

Non-employee directors are granted stock awards annually under the
Company’s NEDSCP. These director stock awards are vested over five years,
and compensation expense is amortized over the vesting period. Non-
employee directors also may elect to receive shares of common stock instead
of a cash payment for their fees and retainers under a separate plan.
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The issuance of first mortgage bonds, including secured medium-term
notes, under the Mortgage and Deed of Trust (Mortgage) is limited by prop-
erty, retained earnings and other provisions of the Mortgage. The Mortgage
constitutes a first mortgage lien on substantially all of NW Natural’s utili-
ty property.

The 7-1/4 % Series of Convertible Debentures may be converted at any
time into 50-1/4 shares of common stock for each $1,000 face value ($19.90
per share).

The maturities for the five years ending Dec. 31, 2006 on the long-term
debt outstanding at Dec. 31,2001 amount to: $40 million in 2002, $20 mil-
lion in 2003, no maturity in 2004, $15 million in 2005 and $8 million in
2006. Holders of certain medium-term notes have put options that, if exer-
cised, would accelerate the maturity of long-term debt by $10 million in
2002 and 2005.
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The Company’s primary source of short-term funds is commercial
paper notes payable. Both NW Natural and Financial Corporation issue
commercial paper under agency agreements with a commercial bank. NW
Natural’s commercial paper is supported by its committed bank lines of
credit (see below), while Financial Corporation’s commercial paper is sup-
ported by committed bank lines of credit and the guaranty of NW Natural.
The amounts and average interest rates of commercial paper outstanding
at Dec. 31 were as follows:

2001 2000
Thousands Amount Rate Amount Rate
NW Natural $108,291  2.6% $ 56,263 6.5%
Financial Corporation - -
Total $108,291 $ 56,263

NW Natural has available through Sept. 30, 2002 committed lines of
credit with four commercial banks totaling $150 million. In addition, Finan-
cial Corporation has available through Sept. 30, 2002 committed lines of

credit with two commercial banks totaling $20 million. Financial Corpor-
ation’s lines are supported by the guaranty of NW Natural.

Under the terms of these lines of credit, NW Natural and Financial Cor-
poration pay commitment fees but are not required to maintain compen-
sating bank balances. The interest rates on borrowings under these lines
of credit are based on current market rates as negotiated. There were no out-
standing balances on either the NW Natural or Financial Corporation lines
of credit as of Dec. 31,2001 or 2000.

R

NW Natural has two qualified non-contributory defined benefit pen-
sion plans covering all regular employees with more than one year of serv-
ice, a non-qualified supplemental pension plan for eligible executive offi-
cers and other postretirement benefit plans for its employees. The following

tables provide a reconciliation of the changes in the plans’ benefit obliga-
tions and fair value of assets over the three-year period ended Dec. 31,
2001 and a statement of the funded status and amounts recognized in the
consolidated balance sheets as of Dec. 31,2001, 2000 and 1999:

- Pension Benefits Other Benefits
Thousands 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at Jan. 1 $146,802 $136,198 $ 142,619 $ 14,069 $ 11,902 $ 15,717
Service cost 3,964 3,475 4,259 325 234 162
Interest cost 11,332 10,312 9,379 1,116 995 715
Expected benefits paid (9,152) (8,035) (6,911) (942) (878) (766)
Plan amendments 1,838 12 4,057 2,419 - (1,583)
Net actuarial (gain) loss 11,967 4,840 (17,205) - 1,816 (2,343)
Benefit obligation at Dec. 31 166,751 146,802 136,198 16,987 14,069 11,902
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at Jan. 1 190,451 193,427 175,554 - - -
Actual return on plan assets (13,077} 4,351 24,104 - - -
Employer contributions 742 708 680 942 878 766
Benefits paid (9,152) (8,035) (6,911) (942) (878) (766)
Fair value of plan assets at Dec. 31 168,964 190,451 193,427 - - -
Funded status:
Funded status at Dec. 31 2,212 43,649 57,229 (16,987) (14,069) (11,902)
Unrecognized transition obligation 351 701 1,035 4,795 5,232 5,667
Unrecognized prior service cost 8,575 8,022 9,184 172 191 210
Unrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss (2,956) (47,661) (67,656) 3,405 1,061 (755)
Net amount recognized $ 8182 § 4711 $ (208) $ (8,615) 3 (7,585) $ (6,780)
Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets at Dec. 31:
Prepaid benefit cost $ 17,211 $ 13,150 $ 7,712 $ - $ - $ -
Accrued benefit liability (9,346) (8,932) (8,578) (8,615) (7,585) (6,780)
Intangible asset 169 493 658 - - -
Other comprehensive loss 148 - - - - -
Net amount recognized $ 8,182 § 4711 $  (208) $ (8,615) $ (7,585) $ (6,780)

For each of the periods presented, the Company’s non-qualified supple-
mental pension plan was the only pension plan with an accumulated ben-
efit obligation in excess of plan assets. The plan’s aggregate accumulated ben-
efit obligation was $10.7 million, $10.4 million and $9.8 million at Dec. 31,
2001,2000 and 1999, respectively. There were no plan assets in the non-qual-
ified plan due to the nature of the plan, but the Company funds its obliga-
tion with trust-owned life insurance. The amount of the life insurance cov-
erage is designed to provide sufficient returns to recover all costs of the

plan. The Company’s plans for providing postretirement benefits other
than pensions also have no plan assets. The aggregate benefit obligation for
those plans is $17.0 million, $14.1 million and $11.9 million at Dec. 31,
2001, 2000 and 1999, respectively.

The following tables provide the components of net periodic cost (ben-
efit) for the plans for the years ended Dec.31,2001,2000 and 1999, and the
assumptions used in the measurement of these costs and the Company’s
benefit obligations:
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- Pension Benefits Other Benefits
Thousands 2001 2000 1999 2001 2000 1999
Service cost $ 3,964 $ 3475 $ 4,259 $ 325 $ 234 $ 162
Interest cost 11,332 10,312 9,379 1,116 995 715
Expected return on plan assets (17,198) (16,056) (15,570) -~ -
Amortization of transition obligation 351 334 37 436 436 436
Amortization of prior service cost 1,284 1,174 827 19 19 -
Recognized actuarial (gain) loss (2,464) (3,449) (781} 75 - (35)
Special termination benefits - - 1,410 - -
Net periodic cost (benefit) $ (2,731) $ (4,210) $  (439) $ 1,971 $ 1,684 $ 1,278
Weighted average assumptions as of Dec.31:
Discount rate 7.25% 7.50% 7.75% 7.25% 7.50% 7.75%
Expected return on plan assets 9.00% 9.00% 10.00% n/a nfa n/a
Rate of compensation increase 4.25-5.00%  4.25-5.00%  4.25-5.00% n/a n/a nfa
The assumed health care cost trend rate used in measuring the accu- The provision for income taxes consists of the following:
mulated postretirement benefit obligation was 8.0 percent during 2001.The  Thousands 2001 2000 1999
rate was assumed to decrease gradually each year to a rate of 4.5 percent  Income taxes currently payable:
for 2005 and remain at that level thereafter. Federal $ 32,682 § 18,228 $ 20518
Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the State 3912 2444 3088
amounts reported for the health care plans. A one percent change in assumed Total 38,594 _ 20672 _ 23,806
health care cost trend rates would have the following effects: Deferred taxes - net:
2 : Federal (8,606) 7,495 1,283
Thousands 1% Increase 1% Decrease State (1,580) (483) 357
Effect on the total service and interest cost Total (10,186) 7,012 1,640
components of net periodic postretirement Investment and energy tax credits restored:
health care benefit cost . $ 66 $ (60) From utility operations (800) (800) (800)
Effect on the health care component of the From subsidiary operations (55) (55) (55)
accumulated postretirement benefit obligation $ 402 § (365) Total (855) (855) (855)
NW Natural also has a qualified defined contribution plan under Internal Total provision for Income faxes § 27,553 § 26829 § 2491
Percentage of pretax income 35.4% 35.9% 35.4%

Revenue Code Section 401(k) and a non-qualified deferred compensation
plan for eligible employees. These plans are designed to enhance the retire-
ment program of employees and to assist them in strengthening their finan-
cial security by providing an incentive to save and invest regularly, NW
Natural’s matching contributions to these plans totaled $1.3 million in both
2001 and 2000, and $1.0 million in 1999.

]

A reconciliation between income taxes calculated at the statutory fed-
eral tax rate and the tax provision reflected in the financial statements is
as follows:
Thousands

2001 2000 1999

Computed income taxes based on
statutory federal income tax rate of 35%
Increase (reduction) in taxes resulting from:
Difference between book and

$ 27,209 $ 26,124 § 24,336

tax depreciation 222 222 222
Current state income tax, net of federal

tax benefit 2,672 2,622 2,450
Federal income tax credits (362) (357) (357)
Amortization of investment tax credits (855) (855) (855)
Removal costs (508) (480) (485)
Reversal of amounts provided in prior years (72) (25) (655)
Gains on Company and trust-owned life

insurance (576) (611) (703)
Other - net (177) 189 638

$ 27,553 $ 26,829 § 24,591
$ 25201 § 22,552 § 27,302

Total provision for income taxes
Total income taxes paid
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:

Thousands 2001 2000 1999

Deferred tax liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment $127,787 § 123,559 § 114,664

Regulatory asset 13,303 14,349 15,894
Total 141,090 137,908 130,558
Deferred tax assets:
Regulatory asset (liability) 2,270 (9,558) (10,784)
Other deferred assets 8,396 5,810 5,192
Total 10,666  (3748) _ (5592)

Net accumulated deferred income tax liability $130,424 §$ 141,656 $ 136,150

o P

The following table sets forth the major classifications of NW Natural’s
utility plant and accumulated depreciation at Dec. 31:

P [ 3|

2001 2000
Average Average
Depreciation Depreciation
Thousands Amount Rate Amount Rate
Transmission and distribution $1,196,825 3.4% $1,144,107 3.3%
Utility storage 104,603  2.6% 103,506  2.7%
General 80,411 2.9% 82,723 6.3%
Intangible and other 52,170  9.8% 46,344 5.5%
Utility plant in service 1,434,009  3.5% 1,376,680  3.5%
Gas stored long-term 11,301 11,301
Construction work in progress 19,769 18,989
Total utility plant 1,465,079 1,406,970
Less accumulated depreciation 514,629 478,138
Utility plant - net $ 950,450 § 928,832




The following table summarizes the Company’s investments in non-
utility plant at Dec. 31:

Thousands 2001 2000
Non-utility storage $ 14,480 $ 4,929
Dock, land and oil station 3,716 3,713
Other 7 7

Total non-utility plant 18,203 8,649
Less accumulated depreciation 3,677 3,451

Non-utility plant - net $ 14,526 § 5,198

The Canadian oil and gas properties were included in investment in a
discontinued segment (see Note 2) and the Port of Portland building was
classified as property held for sale. Both were sold in 2000. Also in 2000,
Financial Corporation sold domestic oil and gas properties that had been
included in other non-utility plant as of Dec. 31, 1999 ($4.9 million).

The following table summarizes the Company’s investments in entities
accounted for under the equity and cost methods, and its investment in an
aircraft leveraged lease at Dec.31:

Thousands 2001 2000
Deferred costs for pending purchase of PGE $ 9,557 § -
Aircraft leveraged lease 6,987 7,479
Gas pipeline and other 3,234 1,776
Electric generation 3,155 4,898
Long-term notes receivable 300 373

Total investments and other $ 23,233 $ 14,526

Financial Corporation has ownership interests ranging from 4.0to 5.3
percent in solar electric generation plants located near Barstow, California.
Power generated by these plants is sold to Southern California Edison Com-
pany under long-term contracts. Financial Corporation also has ownership
interests ranging from 25 to 41 percent in windpower electric generation
projects located near Livermore and Palm Springs, California. The wind-
generated power is sold to Pacific Gas and Electric Company and Southern
California Edison Company under long-term contracts.

In 1987, the Company invested in a Boeing 737-300 aircraft, which is
leased to Continental Airlines for 20 years under a leveraged lease agreement.
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The estimated fair values of NW Natural’s financial instruments have
been determined using available market information and appropriate val-
uation methodologies. The following are financial instruments whose car-

rying values are sensitive to market conditions:

~Dec.31,2001 - ~ Dec. 31,2000 —
Carrying Estimated  Carrying Estimated
Thousands Amount FairValue  Amount  Fair Value

$ 25000 $ 25347 $ 25000 $§ 22,750
$ 9000 % 925 $ 9750 $§ 9,750

Redeemable preference stock
Redeemable preferred stock
Long-term debt including

amount due within one year $ 418,377 $ 407,239 § 420,790 $ 460,929

Fair value of the redeemable preference stock and the redeemable pre-
ferred stock was estimated using quoted market prices. Interest rates for debt
with similar terms and remaining maturities were used to estimate fair val-
ue for debt issues.

The carrying amount of long-term notes receivable approximated fair
value at Dec. 31, 2001 and 2000.

NW Natural enters into short-term and long-term natural gas purchase
contracts with suppliers, including contracts tied to floating prices. As such,
NW Natural is exposed to changes in commodity prices. Natural gas prices
are subject to fluctuations due to unpredictable factors including weather,
inventory levels, pipeline transportation availability, and the economy, each
of which affects short-term supply and demand. As part of its overall strat-
egy to maintain an acceptable level of exposure to gas price fluctuations,
the Company uses a targeted mix of fixed-rate and cap-protected deriva-
tives to hedge the exposure under floating price gas supply contracts. Swap
contracts are used to convert certain long-term gas purchase contracts from
floating prices to fixed prices, and call option contracts are used to limit the
maximum adverse impact from floating price contracts while retaining
the potential favorable impact from declining gas prices. These commod-
ity hedge contracts are usually embedded in NW Natural’s annual gas rate
to customers, pursuant to its Oregon Purchased Gas Adjustment tariff (PGA),
which is intended to limit customers’ exposure to frequent changes in pur-
chased gas costs. The estimated fair value gains and losses from commodity
hedge contracts are recorded as a derivative asset or liability, and are off-
set by a corresponding amount recorded to a deferred regulatory asset or
liability account for the effective portion of each hedge contract. The actu-
al gains and losses realized at settlement of the hedge contract are used to
offset the actual purchase cost from NW Natural’s physical supply contract.

Certain natural gas purchases from Canadian suppliers are invoiced in
Canadian dollars, including both commodity and demand charges, there-
by exposing NW Natural to adverse changes in foreign currency rates. Foreign
currency forward contracts are used to minimize the impact of fluctua-
tions in currency rates. Foreign currency contracts for commodity costs are
purchased on a month-to-month basis because the Canadian cost is priced
at the noonday exchange rate. Foreign currency contracts for demand costs
have terms ranging up to 24 months. The gains and losses on the shorter-
term currency contracts for commodity costs are recognized immediate-
ly in cost of gas. The gains and losses on the longer-term currency con-
tracts for demand charges are subject to a regulatory deferral tariff and, as
such, are recorded as a derivative asset or liability which is offset by a cor-
responding amount to a deferred asset or liability account.

NW Natural did not use any derivative instruments to hedge oil or pro-
pane prices or interest rates during 2001.

At Dec. 31,2001, NW Natural had the following derivatives outstand-
ing covering its exposures to commodity and foreign currency prices: a
series of 14 natural gas price swap contracts, two natural gas price call option
contracts, and 14 foreign currency forward contracts. Each of these contracts
was designated as a cash flow hedge. The estimated fair values and the
notional amounts of derivative instruments outstanding were as foliows:

—Jan. 1,2001 —— Dec. 31,2001 —
Fair Value  Notional FairValue Notional
Gain{Loss) Amount Gain(Loss) Amount

Thousands

Fixed-price natural gas
commodity price swaps
Fixed-price natural gas call

$122,588 $106,735 $(110,935) $254,209

options 41,980 51,103 (832) 6,390
Foreign currency forward

purchase contracts 405 34,057 (101) 10,223

Total $164,973 $191,895 $(111,868) $270,822
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In 2001, NW Natural realized net gains of $57.6 million from the set-
tlement of natural gas commodity swap and call option contracts, which
were recorded as reductions to the cost of gas, compared to net gains of $56.2
million during 2000. The currency exchange rate in all foreign currency
forward purchase contracts is included in NW Natural’s cost of gas at set-
tlement; therefore, no gain or loss was recorded from the settlement of those
contracts. The change in value of cash flow hedge contracts, not included
in regulatory recovery, is included in OCI.In 2001, the Company recognized
a $0.2 million loss in OCL

The fair value of derivative instruments at Dec. 31,2001 (see table above)
was determined using estimated or quoted market prices for the periods
covered by the contracts. Market prices for the natural gas commodity-
price swap and call option contracts were obtained from external sources.
These third-party valuations are reviewed for reasonableness by the Com-
pany using fair value calculations for other contracts with similar terms and
conditions. The market prices for the foreign currency forward contracts
were based on the currency exchange rates quoted by The Bank of Canada.

As of Dec. 31,2001, NW Natural had six natural gas commodity-price
swap contracts extending beyond Dec. 31,2002, but none extends longer
than Oct. 31,2003. None of the natural gas commodity-price call option con-
tracts extends beyond Dec. 31,2002.

NW Natural has entered into a contract with a third party lender to
provide natural gas equipment financing to customers of NW Natural.
Under the terms of this agreement, NW Natural guarantees a minimum lev-
el of return to the lender, which constitutes an embedded derivative under
SFAS No. 133. This derivative is a fair value hedge, and as such any change
in valuation is recognized in current earnings. NW Natural recorded a loss
from this contract of less than $0.1 million for 2001.

2. CONMMIEMENTS FNDICONE
Lease Commitments

The Company leases land, buildings and equipment under agreements
that expire in various years through 2006, Rental expense under operating
leases was $4.7 million, $4.9 million and $5.2 million for the years ended
Dec.31,2001,2000 and 1999, respectively. The table below reflects the future
minimum lease payments due under non-cancelable leases at Dec.31,2001.
Such payments total $15.3 million for operating leases. The net present
value of payments on capital leases was $1.1 million after deducting imput-
ed interest of $0.1 million. These commitments principally relate to the
lease of the Company’s office headquarters, underground gas storage facil-
ities, vehicles and computer equipment.

Later
Millions 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 years
Operating leases $29 $27 $27 $26 $10 §34
Capital leases $09 $03 §$ - $ - §$ - § -
Minimum lease payments  $ 3.8  § 3.0 27 26 310 §34

|

Acquisition of Portland General Electric Company

On Oct. 5,2001, NW Natural and Enron Corp., an Oregon corporation
(Enron), entered into an agreement (the Stock Purchase Agreement) pro-
viding for the acquisition, by a wholly-owned subsidiary of NW Natural formed
to serve as a holding company (Holding Company), of all of the issued and
outstanding common stock of PGE, an Oregon corporation and wholly-
owned subsidiary of Enron.
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The terms of the Stock Purchase Agreement provide that Enron will sell
PGE to Holding Company for $1.8 billion, comprised of $1.55 billion in cash
and $250 million of equity securities to be issued to Enron ($50 million in
the form of common stock and Class B common stock of Holding Company
and $200 million in the form of FELINE PRIDES™ of Holding Company).
The cash portion of the purchase price will be raised through loans to Hold-
ing Company from commercial banks and institutional lenders arranged,
pursuant to a written financing commitment, by Merrill Lynch and Credit
Suisse First Boston. A $75 million payment obligation from Enron to PGE,
remaining from Enron’s purchase of PGE in 1996, will be assumed by
Holding Company. PGE will retain its approximately $1.1 billion in exist-
ing debt and preferred stock.

The proposed transaction is subject to certain conditions, including,
without limitation, (i) the absence of any injunction, order, law or regula-
tion preventing consummation of the sale of the PGE shares, (ii) receipt by
Enron, NW Natural and Holding Company of required regulatory approvals,
(iii) the approval of NW Natural’s shareholders, (iv) the availability of the
debt financing described above on the conditions stated in the Stock Pur-
chase Agreement, (v) performance of obligations of Enron and NW Natural
pursuant to the Stock Purchase Agreement, and (vi) the accuracy of Enron's
and NW Natural’s representations and warranties. Required regulatory
approvals include the QPUC, the WUTC, the Federal Energy Regulatory
Commission, the Nuclear Regulatory Commission and the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

On Dec. 2,2001, Enron, along with certain of its subsidiaries, filed peti-
tions for reorganization under Chapter 11 of the United States Bankruptcy
Code in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court for the Southern District of New York.
PGE has not filed for reorganization under Chapter 11. Enron’s bankruptcy
filing and its impact on PGE may delay or impede the acquisition of PGE.

Purchase Commitments

NW Natural has signed agreements providing for the availability of
firm pipeline capacity under which it must make fixed monthly payments
for contracted capacity. The pricing component of the monthly payment is
established, subject to change, by U.S. or Canadian regulatory bodies. In
addition, NW Natural has entered into long-term agreements to release
firm pipeline capacity. The aggregate amounts of these agreements were as
follows at Dec. 31,2001:

Capacity ~ Capacity

Purchase Release

Thousands Agreements Agreements
2002 $ 81,175 § 3,837
2003 72,702 3,837
2004 46,068 3,838
2005 41,663 3,838
2006 37,110 3,838
2007 through 2023 287,744 14,711
Total 566,462 33,899
Less: Amount representing interest 123,524 6,263

Total at present value $ 442,938 § 27,336

NW Natural’s total payments of fixed charges under capacity purchase
agreements in 2001, 2000 and 1999 were $86.5 million, $81.5 million and
$78.2 million, respectively. Included in the amounts for 2001, 2000 and
1999 were reductions for capacity release sales totaling $3.8 million in each
of these years. In addition, per-unit charges are required to be paid based
on the actual quantities shipped under the agreements. In certain take-or-
pay purchase commitments, annual deficiencies may be offset by prepay-
ments subject to recovery over a longer term if future purchases exceed
the minimum annual requirements.




Environmental Matters

NW Natural owns property in Linnton, Oregon that is the site of a for-
mer gas manufacturing plant that was closed in 1956 (the Linnton site). In
recent years, the Linnton site has been under voluntary investigation by NW
Natural for environmental contaminants under program oversight by the
Oregon Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ). NW Natural has
recorded liabilities totaling $4.0 million for the estimated costs of investi-
gation and interim remediation at the Linnton site, including consultants’
fees, ODEQ oversight reimbursement and legal fees, of which $3.0 million
had been spent as of Dec. 31,2001. In 2000, NW Natural recorded a $1.4 mil-
lion receivable representing an estimate of the costs for investigation and
interim remediation at the Linnton site that NW Natural expects to recov-
er from insurance.

NW Natural previously owned property adjacent to the Linnton site that
now is the location of a manufacturing plant owned by Wacker Siltronic Cor-
poration (the Wacker site). In October 2000, the ODEQ issued an order requir-
ing Wacker and NW Natural to determine the nature and extent of releas-
es of hazardous substances to Willamette River sediments from the Wacker
site. NW Natural has recorded a liability of $0.3 million for its estimated costs
of the investigation and initial remediation on the Wacker site.

In 1998, the ODEQ and the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
completed a study of sediments in a 5.5 mile segment of the Willamette River
(the Portland Harbor) that includes the area adjacent to the Linnton site and
the Wacker site. In 2000, the EPA listed the Portland Harbor as a Superfund
site and notified the Company that it is a potentially responsible party, NW
Natural recorded a liability of $0.6 million in 2000 and, based on a revised
estimate of NW Natural’s share at the lower end of a range of probable lia-
bility, recorded an additional $0.5 million in 2001 for its estimated share
of the costs of the remedial investigation of the Portland Harbor. Available
information is insufficient to determine either the total amount of liabili-
ty for investigation and remediation of the Portland Harbor or the higher
end of a range for NW Natural’s estimated share of that liability.

NW Natural expects that its costs of further investigation and any reme-
diation for which it may be responsible with respect to the Linnton site, the
Wacker site and the Portland Harbor Superfund site should be recover-
able, in large part, from insurance. In the event these costs are not recov-
ered from insurance, NW Natural will seek recovery through future rates.

Litigation

NW Natural is party to a lawsuit, Northwest Natural Gas Company v.
Chase Gardens, Inc. (Lane County Circuit Court Case No. 16-91-01370), in-
volving claims by a commercial customer. In 1995, a jury returned verdicts
against NW Natural for $5.1 million on the customer’s tort claim or, alter-
natively, for $1.9 million on its contract claim, along with a verdict in favor
of NW Natural for $0.2 million on its own contract claim. In 1999, the
Oregon Supreme Court ruled in NW Natural’s favor on the customer’s tort
claim and the Oregon Court of Appeals ruled in NW Natural’s favor on its
contract claim. The Oregon Supreme Court initially declined to review the
Court of Appeals’ decision on the contract claim. On reconsideration, how-
ever, in December 2000, the Supreme Court agreed to review the Court of
Appeals’ decision on the contract claim.

In February 2002, the Supreme Court issued a decision adverse to NW
Natural on the customer’s contract claim and remanded the case to the cir-
cuit court for further proceedings. Based on the Supreme Court’s February
2002 decision, NW Natural recorded charges to operating expense and inter-
est expense totaling $2.7 million for the year ended Dec. 31,2001, equiva-
lent to 6 cents a diluted share, as a reserve against payment of the net judg-
ment, related costs and post-judgment interest.

The Company is party to certain other legal actions in which claimants
seek material amounts. Although it is impossible to predict the outcome with
certainty, based upon the opinions of legal counsel, management does not
expect disposition of these matters to have a materially adverse effect on
the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Comparative Consolidated Income Statements

@@0@1}]@1@ - Thousands, except per share amounts (year ended December 31) 2001 2000
© (BY CUSTOMER CLASS) Operating revenues:
Gross operating revenues’ $ 650,252 $ 532,110
Cost of sales’ 374,241 274,160
Net operating revenues 276,011 257,950
2001
Operating expenses:
Operations and maintenance 83,920 77,817
Taxes other than income taxes 32,240 28,351
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 49,640 47,440
1950 Loss on cogeneration facility - -
Total operating expenses 165,800 153,608
Income from continuing cperations’ 110,211 104,342
o Other income (expense)” 1,334 3,860
R L COMMERCIAL AND Interest charges - net 33,805 33,561
INDUSTRIAL INTERRUPTIBLE Income before income taxes 77,740 74,641
B TRANSPORTATION Income taxes 27,553 26,829
Revenues from residential, commercial Net income from continuing operations 50,187 47,812
and industrial firm sales customers Discontinued segment:
h?ve CO}“SIStenﬂY exceeded 87 percent Income from discontinued segment - net of tax - -
of total gas revenues since 1990. Gain on sale of discontinued segment - net of tax - 2,412
Net income 50,187 50,224
I Redeemable preferred and preference
@E@ﬁm@ : stock dividend requirements 2,401 2,456
(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS) Earnings applicable to common stock $ 47,786 $ 47,768
Average common shares outstanding 25,159 25,183
$50 Basic earnings per share of common stock:
540 From C(.)ntinu‘ing operations $ 1.90 $ 1.80
. From discontinued segment - -
530 o From gain on sale of discontinued segment - 0.10
$20 o 1@ Total basic earnings per share $ 196§ 1.90
$10 Q,  LELLLEE Diluted earnings per share of commen stock:
91 92 93 §4 95 96 97 98 99 00 01 From continuing operations $ 1.88 $ 1.79
= NET INCOME From discontinued segment - -
REDUCTION OF 52.8 MILLION NET From gain on sale of discontinued segment - 0.09
(NCOME (N 1992 AND $14.4 MILLION . ,
NET INCOME IN 1981 FROM THE LOSS Total diluted earnings per share $ 1.88 $ 1.88
ON AGRICO COGENERATION ..
CORPORATION. Dividends per share of common stock $ 1.245 $ 1.24
E REDUCTION OF $10.8 MILLION NET
INCOME FOR FINANCIAL CORPORATION See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
AND $1.7 MILLION FOR CANOR FROM s . . .
ASSET IMPAIRMENT CHANGES IN 1998 Interest on deferred regulatory accounts for years prior to 1998 was reclassified from gross operating revenues or cost of sales
to other income (expense).
The Company earned $50.2 million 7 Net income from discontinued segment prior to 1996 is not available.

in net income in 2001, the second
highest in the Company’s history.
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1999 19981 1997* 1996! 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991

$ 455,834 $ 404,390 351,709 370,826 355,627 367,861 $ 358,452 $ 274,397 295,933
212,197 173,424 130,599 141,842 142,025 162,199 138,751 101,672 110,294
243,637 230,966 221,110 228,984 213,602 205,662 219,701 172,725 185,639
73,209 78,226 73,864 76,204 72,018 70,881 70,723 64,249 65,529
24,652 21,939 19,952 21,597 24,181 24,263 25,561 20,865 21,104
51,008 43,937 39,051 37,971 40,594 38,058 39,683 33,035 33,623

- - - - - - - 4,575 23,200

148,869 144,102 132,867 135,772 136,793 133,202 135,967 122,724 143,456
94,768 86,864 88,243 93,212 76,809 72,460 83,734 50,001 42,183

4,816 (13,723) 4,138 6,891 9,055 8,393 1,116 (542) 1,106
30,052 31,586 28,469 26,711 25,679 24,919 25,107 26,733 26,591
69,532 41,555 63,912 73,392 60,185 55,934 59,743 22,726 16,698
24,591 14,604 21,034 27,118 22,120 20,473 22,096 6,951 2,321
44,941 26,951 42,878 46,274 38,065 35,461 37,647 15,775 14,377

355 350 181 519 - - - - -

45,296 27,301 43,059 46,793 38,065 35,461 37,647 15,775 14,377

2,515 2,577 2,646 2,723 2,806 2,983 3,488 2,560 2,593

$ 42,781 $ 24,724 40,413 44,070 35,259 32,478 $ 34,159 3 13,215 11,784
24,976 24,233 22,698 22,391 21,817 19,943 19,611 17,864 17,547

$ 1.70 $ 1.01 1.77 1.95 1.62 1.63 $ 1.74 $ 0.74 0.67
0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 - - - - -

$ 1.71 $ 1.02 1.78 1.97 162 1.63 $ 1.74 3 0.74 0.67
$ 1.69 $ 1.01 1.75 1.92 1.60 1.61 3 1.72 $ 0.74 0.67
0.01 0.01 0.01 0.02 - - - - -

$ 1.70 $ 1.02 1.76 1.94 1.60 1.61 $ 1,72 $ 0.74 0.67
$ 1.225 $ 1.22 1.205 1.20 1.18 1.173 3 1.167 $ 1.147 1.127
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(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS)
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Utility plant continued to increase in
2001 as a result of customer growth
and investments in technology and
gas storage.

(IN MILLIONS OF DOLLARS}
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- COMMON EQUITY

PREFERRED AND PREFERENCE STOCK
B | ONG-TERM DEBT

$31.3 miliion in cash dividends were
paid to common shareholders in 2001,
$18 million in Medium-Term Notes
were issued and $20 million in
Medium-Term Notes were retired.
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Comparative Consclidated Balance Sheets

Thousands of dollars (December 31) 2001 2000
Assets:
Plant and property:
Utility plant $ 1,465,079  $ 1,406,970
Less accumulated depreciation 514,629 478,138
Utility plant - net 950,450 928,832
Non-utility property 18,203 8,649
Less accumulated depreciation and depletion 3,677 3,451
Non-utility property — net 14,526 5,198
Total plant and property 964,976 934,030
Other investments 23,233 14,526
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents 10,440 11,283
Accounts receivable - net 64,722 60,753
Accrued unbilled revenue 57,749 45,619
[nventories of gas, materials and supplies 49,337 46,883
Investment in discontinued segment - -
Property held for sale - -
Prepayments and other current assets 28,086 22,834
Total current assets 210,334 187,372
Regulatory tax assets 48,469 49,515
Deferred gas costs receivable - 16,973
Unrealized loss on non-trading derivatives 111,641 -
Deferred debits and other 76,369 76,297
Total assets $ 1,435,022 $ 1,278,713
Capitalization and liabilities:
Capitalization:
Common stock equity $ 468,161 $ 452,309
Redeemable preference stock 25,000 25,000
Redeemable preferred stock 9,000 9,750
Total capital stock 502,161 487,059
First mortgage bonds 370,000 382,000
Unsecured debt 8,377 18,790
Secured debt - -
Total long-term debt 378,377 400,790
Total capitalization 880,538 387,349
Minority interest - -
Current liabilities:
Notes payable 108,291 56,263
Accounts payable 70,698 110,698
Long-term debt due within one year 40,000 20,000
Taxes accrued 22,539 8,066
Interest accrued 3,658 2,696
Other current and accrued liabilities 28,396 23,638
Total current liabilities 273,582 221,361
Deferred investment tax credits 8,682 9,538
Deferred income taxes 130,424 141,656
Fair value of non-trading derivatives 111,868 -
Deferred gas costs payable 10,089 -
Regulatory liabilities and other 19,839 18,309
Total capitalization and liabilities $ 1,435,022 $ 1,278,713

" Deferred gas costs were included in deferred debits or regulatory accounts prior to 1995,




1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991
$ 1,331,415 § 1,239,690  $ 1,164,499  $ 1,055112  $ 969,075  $ 908,238 840,030 779274 $ 722,069

436,386 404,117 366,607 336,141 308,702 279,112 255,282 233,385 207,165

895,029 835,573 797,892 718,971 660,373 629,126 584,748 545,889 514,904

8,548 89,050 52,422 45,689 53,807 49,586 42,764 44,629 51,265

7,654 29,927 22,843 19,388 16,997 24,456 20,646 15,480 13,161

894 59,123 29,579 26,301 36,810 25,130 22,118 29,149 38,104

895,923 894,696 827,471 745,272 697,183 654,256 606,866 575,038 553,008

16,557 16,714 35,126 34,723 37,882 37,097 34,574 40,336 33,145

10,013 7,383 6,731 8,219 7,782 8,068 4,198 7,537 46,465

43,349 47,476 39,420 40,833 34,385 4,152 43,972 33,008 27,752

31,550 34,258 23911 22,340 21,493 20,320 25,890 20,738 18,135

33,919 21,258 17,385 14,439 14,254 14,958 16,838 15,797 17,294

29,163 - - - - - - - -

16,712 - - - - - - - -

18,349 16,105 17,226 12,483 12,396 10,041 16,412 8,220 8,248

183,055 126,480 104,673 98,314 90,310 95,539 107,310 85,300 117,894

51,060 56,860 56,860 57,940 60,430 60,430 62,130 - -

20,950 27,795 28,628 - - : :

76,878 69,191 58,859 52,620 43,472 41,982 38,156 31,160 27,447
$ 1,244,423 § 1,191,736 $ 1,111,617 § 988,869  § 929277  $ 889,304 849,036 731,834  § 731,494
$ 429506 $ 412,404 $ 366265 $ 346778  § 323552  $ 274,408 258,565 241,538 $ 216,280

25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 26,252 26,633 26,766 1,869

10,564 11,499 12,429 13,749 14,840 15,950 17,041 28,218 29,148

465,160 448,903 403,694 385,527 363,392 316,610 302,239 296,522 247,297

377,000 347,000 324,000 236,000 238,000 234,000 215,000 205,458 197,596

19,379 19,738 20,303 35,838 41,945 57,076 57,931 48,308 43,499

- - - - - - - - 11,900
396,379 366,738 344,303 271,838 279,945 291,076 272,931 253,766 252,995
861,539 815,641 747,997 657,365 643,337 607,686 575,170 550,288 500,292

- 16,322 - - - - - - -

94,149 87,264 89,317 50,058 28,832 53,654 72,548 47,109 88,619

68,163 56,039 58,775 64,795 41,784 48,517 44,318 40,282 43,789

10,000 10,000 16,000 26,000 21,000 1,000 - 2,138 2,125

4,101 7,486 4,656 3,196 10,281 6,584 6,757 4,790 3,631

4,673 6,204 6,058 5,396 4,617 4,570 4,438 6,792 7,070

39,153 23,477 21,390 19,418 13,204 11,757 10,180 9,387 6,742

220,239 190,470 196,196 168,863 119,718 126,082 138,241 110,498 151,976

10,393 11,248 11,949 11,668 12,493 13,530 14,567 15,603 16,658

136,150 140,310 139,953 123,625 118,692 112,433 104,300 34,929 34,989

- - - 8,058 19,914 : :

16,102 17,745 15,522 19,290 15,123 29,573 16,758 20,516 27,579

$ 1244423  $ 1,191,736 $ 1111617 S 988,869  § 929277  $ 889,304 849,036 731,834 $ 731,494
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Comparative Financial Statistics

2001 2000
Common stock
Ratios - year-end:
$2.00 Price/earnings ratio 13.4 13.9
’ Dividend yield at year-end rate — % 4.9 4.7
$1.75 ) Dividend payout ~ % 65.5 65.3
s150 Return on average common equity - % 10.4 10.8
| Per share data - ($):
$1.25 Basic earnings 1.50 1.90
$100° Diluted earnings 1.88 1.88
: Dividends paid 1.245 1.240
$0.75 g E a E Dividend rate at year-end 1.26 1.24
5102 93 94 95 95 97 98 99 00 01 Book value at year-end 18.56 17.93
F= DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE Market price:
REDUCTION OF 16 CENTS PER SHARE High 26.69 27.50
3 e o e Lo 2165 1775
COGENERATION CGRPORATION Year-end 25.50 26.50
LOSS CF 50 CENTS PER SHARE IN 1998 Average 23.666 22.147
DUE TO ASSET IMPAIRMENT CHARGES
Number of shares of common stock
Diluted earnings of $1.88 per share outstanding (000):
in 2001 matched the record for the Year-end 25,228 25,233
second highest earnings set in 2000. Average 25,159 25,183
Coverage data - times earned
Fixed charges - Securities and
Exchange Commission 3.14 3.14
Fixed charges - Standard & Poor’s 3.30 3.16
LN : Utility plant
(IN DOLLARS) Capital expenditures (000) $ 71,943 $ 80,444
Depreciation - % of average
535 depreciable utility plant 35 3.5
Accumulated depreciation - % of
$30 depreciable utility plant 36.0 349
$25 Capital structure - year-end (%)
520 (Exclusive of current portion of long-term debt)
First mortgage bonds 42.0 44.1
$15 Unsecured debt 1.0 1.0
$10 Secured debt - -
o Total long-term debt 43.0 45.1
™ MARKET PRICE PER SHARE Redeemable preferred stock 1.0 1.1
E BOOK VALUE PER SHARZ Redeemable preference stock 2.8 2.8
) Common stock equity 53.2 51.0
The year-end market-to-book ratio Total capital stock 57.0 549
averaged 1.52x over the past five
years. Total return to shareholders Total capital structure 100.0 100.0
Pndrdsbpiiinaie e
' Effective tax rate - % of pretax income 35 36

per year for this period.

" Includes losses of $0.16 per share in 1992 and $0.82 per share in 1991 on Agrico Cogeneration Corporation,
and losses of $0.50 per share in 1998 due to asset write-downs for Financial Corporation and Canor.
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1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991

129 254" 17.4 12.2 13.6 12.1 13.1 25.7° 285
56 4.7 39 5.0 3.3 6.0 5.1 6.0 6.0
71.6 119.6° 67.7 60.9 73.1 72.1 67.0 155.0° 167.3°
10.2 6.4’ 11.3 13.0 11.8 12.2 13.7 5.8 54
1.71 1.02° 1.78 1.97 1.62 1.63 1.74 0.74’ 0.67"
1.70 1.02 1.76 1.94 1.60 1.61 1.72 0.74 0.67
1.225 1.22 1.205 1.20 1.18 1.173 1.167 1.147 1.127
1.24 1.22 1.22 1.20 1.20 1.173 1.173 1.147 1.147
17.12 16.59" 16.02 15.37 14.55 13.63 13.08 12417 12.23"
27.875 30.75 31.25 25.75 22.667 24.333 25.333 22.50 22.167
19.50 24.25 23.125 20.833 18.667 19.00 19.00 17.667 16.833
21.938 25.875 31.00 24.00 22.00 19.667 22.833 19.00 19.167
24.629 27.248 25.292 23.054 20.75 21.25 22.167 20.00 18.917
25,092 24,853 22,864 22,555 22,243 20,129 19,766 19,460 17,678
24,976 24,233 22,698 22,391 21,817 19,943 19,611 17,864 17,547
3.12 2.20° 2.99 3.53 3.15 3.08 322 1.81" 1.59
3.19 272 3.05 3.71 2.87 2.98 347 2.08 2.51

$ 109,144 $ 80,022 $ 115,886 $ 83,400 $ 67,163 $ 77,668 $ 70,404 $ 60,709 $ 58362

40 3.9 38 38 42 41 4.1 4.0 42
334 332 326 332 328 317 311 30.4 29.3
436 426 433 35.9 37.0 38.5 374 373 39,5

23 24 2.7 5.5 6.5 9.4 10.1 88 8.7

- - - - - - - - 2.4
45.9 45.0 46.0 414 43.5 47.9 475 46.1 50.6

12 14 1.7 2.1 23 26 3.0 5.1 5.8

2.9 3.1 33 3.8 3.9 43 46 49 0.4
50.0 50.5 49.0 52.7 50.3 45.2 4.9 43.9 4.2
54.1 55.0 54.0 58.6 56.5 52.1 52.5 53.9 49.4

100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
35 35 33 37 37 37 37 31 14
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ISTONMIER GROWT:

(IN THOUSANDS OF CUSTOMERS)

|
5 &
91 92 93 94 55 96 97 98 99 00 01
The Company added 17,525 new cus-
tomers in 2001. The customer base
! has grown at a compound annual rate
| of 4.4 percent over the past 10 years.

j 9192 93 94 95 9 97 98 99 00 01
Cost of ges, including demand charges,
increasec 25 percent in 2001 and was
115 percent higher than 10 years ago.

- ({EAT REOUIREMENTS - == |

! (IN HEATING DEGREE DAYS)

=t 3}

91 92 93 94 95 E 97 98 99 00 01

" DEGREEDAYS
=== 20-YEAR AVERAGE DEGREE DAYS

Weather conditions in NW Natural’s
service area have been warmer than
the rolling 20-year average in five of
the past 10 years.
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Comparative Operating Statistics

Selected utility data 2001 2000
Customers at year-end
Residential 485,207 468,087
Commercial 55,096 54,684
Industrial firm 383 384
Industrial interruptible 148 126
Total sales customers 540,834 523,281
Transportation customers 97 125
Total customers 540,931 523,406
Gas sales and transportation deliveries (000 therms)
Residential 350,065 356,375
Commercial 242,293 250,380
Industrial firm 79,778 76,559
Industrial interruptible 63,597 56,632
Total gas sales 735,733 739,946
Transportation 385,783 431,136
Unbilled therms 1,771 8,691
Total volumes delivered 1,123,287 1,179,773
Operating revenues and cost of sales (000)
Sales revenues:
Residential $ 329,905 $ 280,642
Commercial 190,236 159,660
Industrial firm 49,662 37,378
Industrial interruptible 34,283 23,483
Total gas sales revenues 604,086 501,163
Transportation 20,637 21,491
Unbilled revenues 13,774 12,661
Other” (2,325) (3,976)
Total utility operating revenues’ 636,172 531,339
Cost of gas” 364,699 273,978
Net utility operating revenues” 271,473 257,361
Non-utility net operating revenues 4,538 589
Net operating revenues $ 276,011 $ 257,950
Customer data
Heat requirements:
Actual degree days 4,325 4,418
20-year average degree days 4,202 4,197
Average use per customer in therms:
Residential 738 781
Commercial 4,435 4,670
Average rate per therm (cents):
Residential 94.2 78.7
Commercial 78.5 63.8
Industrial firm 62.2 48.8
Industrial interruptible 54.0 41.5
Total sales 82.1 67.7
Gas purchases (000 therms) 739,620 745,582
Gas purchased cost per therm - net (cents) 47.19 37.68
Average sendout cost of gas (cents)” 49.45 36.60
Maximum day firm sendout (000 therms) 4,247 4,071
Maximum day total sendout (000 therms) 5,996 5,759
Payroll (000)
Operating $ 40,856 $ 38979
Construction and other 25,626 24,756
Total $ 66,482 $ 63,735
Utility employees 1,284 1,315
Number of customers served by each operating employee 671 646

" Interest on deferred regulatory accounts for years prior to 1998 was reclassified from gross operating reventies or cost of sales
to other income (expense).




1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994 1993 1992 1991

447,659 425,606 407,061 385,213 363,903 346,950 329,157 311,216 295,955
52,870 51,159 50,315 47,309 45,402 44,078 42,657 41,156 39,805
388 411 403 407 410 401 396 381 367
115 108 122 119 143 142 153 90 60
501,032 477,284 457,901 433,048 409,858 391,571 372,363 352,843 336,187
131 123 120 121 91 67 64 135 171
501,163 477,407 458,021 433,169 409,949 391,638 372,427 352,978 336,358
352,969 315,686 306,356 306,310 256,462 260,218 267,818 206,131 233,079
252,382 229,124 225,249 225,115 196,723 201,925 209,642 169,406 189,384
84,630 87,275 84,523 91,122 82,958 81,348 80,588 67,847 65,535
52,938 51,521 53,929 63,261 84,173 89,899 66,370 22,399 13,155
742,919 683,606 670,057 685,808 620,316 633,390 624,418 465,783 501,153
480,570 446,165 440,452 410,062 379,116 364,461 415,367 595,397 591,171
(9,343) 8,645 3,615 3,759 4,946 (7,519) 3,844 4,163 (16,943)
1,214,146 1,138,416 1,114,124 1,099,629 1,004,378 990,332 1,043,629 1,065,343 1,075,381

$ 242,952 $ 205,388 $ 177,835 $ 183,802 $ 165,662 $ 176,510 $ 168,217 $ 124,834 $ 142,056

139,425 117,889 100,677 104,582 99,079 108,452 103,476 78,614 90,263
35,857 34,303 27,025 30,672 31,268 34,443 31,340 24,867 25,222
17,182 15,337 13,944 17,097 24,113 27,361 18,884 6,920 3,352

435,416 372,917 319,481 336,153 320,122 346,766 321,917 235,235 260,893
21,351 19,958 22,029 22,533 16,650 14,702 17,892 25,564 20,424
(2,671) 8,314 1,647 1,627 1,173 (5,571} 5,153 2,603 (9,362)

1,194 2,617 7,884 9,824 9,411 429 2,625 2,812 113

455,290 403,806 351,041 370,137 347,356 356,326 347,587 266,214 281,068

212,021 173,242 130,381 141,789 142,025 162,437 138,751 101,489 107,093

243,269 230,564 220,660 228,348 205,331 193,889 208,836 164,725 173,975

368 402 450 636 8,271 11,773 10,865 8,000 11,664

§ 243,637 $ 230,966 $ 221,110 $ 228984 § 213,602 $ 205,662 § 219,701 $ 172,725 $ 185,639

4,256 4,011 4,092 4,427 3,779 4,020 4,452 3,662 4,248
4,193 4,234 4,264 4,273 4,306 4,324 4,313 4,354 4,379
810 749 777 823 726 776 844 685 812
4,851 4,540 4,670 4,874 4,420 4,680 5,029 4,214 4,874
68.8 65.1 58.0 60.0 64.6 67.8 62.8 60.6 60.9
55.2 51.5 44.7 46.5 50.4 53.7 49.4 46.4 47.7
42.4 39.3 320 33.7 37.7 423 38.9 36.7 385
325 29.6 259 27.0 28.6 30.4 28.5 30.9 255
58.6 54.6 477 49.0 51.6 54.7 51.6 50.5 52.1
773,258 712,602 702,820 692,894 640,976 642,607 628,172 455,343 498,916
27.85 25.09 24.05 2225 20.67 23.44 23.11 23.76 21.81
28.90 25.03 19.35 20.56 22.71 25.95 22.08 21.60 22.12
4,170 6,260 4,450 6,020 4,359 3913 4,047 3,432 3,390
6,211 7,526 5,746 7,446 5,701 5,285 5,479 5,300 4,696

$ 38,066 $ 37573 $ 35669 $ 34,037 $ 33,669 $ 33,888 $ 33539 $ 30,398 $ 28,898

24,322 24,625 24,630 22,920 22,074 20,795 21,056 19,802 18,392

$ 62,388 $ 62,198 $ 60,299 $ 56,957 § 55743 $ 54,683 $ 54,595 $ 50,200 $ 47,290
1,275 1,303 1,337 1,304 1,288 1,338 1,293 1,328 1,276

643 611 583 560 533 478 469 437 431
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Board of Directors
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NW Natural's Board of Directors gathers outside the Board Room at NW Natural's headquarters in Portland. Standing at the
base of the stairs are {left to right) Richard L. Woolworth, Tod R. Hamachel, Benjamin R. Whiteley, Richard G. Reiten, Robert L.
Ridgley, Thomas E. Dewey, Jr., and Russell F. Tromley. Second row (left to right): Randall C. Papé, Mary Arnstad, and Melody C.
Teppola. Top row {left to right): Dwight A. Sangrey and Wayne D. Kuni.
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Mary Arnstad, 53

President, Arnstad & Associates, Inc.
(Management and marketing consulting services)
Bend, Oregon

(1992](2) (5)

Thomas E. Dewey, Jr., 69
Member

McFarland Dewey & Co., LLC
(Investment banking firm)
New York, N.Y.

(1986] (2) (6)

Tod R.Hamachek, 56

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Penwest Pharmaceuticals Company
{Development of pharmaceutical drug
delivery products and technologies)
Patterson, New York

(1986] (3) (4)

Wayne D. Kuni, 71
Chairman

Kuni Enterprises
(Automobile dealerships)
Beaverton, Oregon

(1980 (1) (2) (3) (6)

Randall C. Papé, 51

President and Chief Executive Officer
The Papé Group, Inc.

(Sales and service of capital equipment)
Eugene, Oregon

[1996] (3) (4) (5)

Richard G. Reiten, 62
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Executive Officer
NW Natural

Portland, Oregon

[1996] (1)

Robert L.Ridgley, 68
Retired Chairman of the Board
NW Natural

Vancouver, Washington
[1984] (1) (4) (5) (6)

Dwight A. Sangrey, 61

Business Development Consultant
(Information technology, engineering
and health care)

Portland, Oregon

(19921 (2) (5)

Melody C.Teppola, 59

Managing Partner

National Builders Hardware Company
(Regional and national distributor of
builders hardware, decorative plumbing
and woodworking machinery)
Portland, Oregon

(19871 (1) (4) (5)

Russell F. Tromley, 62

President and Chief Executive Officer
Tromley Industrial Holdings, Inc.
(Manufacturer of foundry equipment and
distribution of nonferrous metals)
Tualatin, Oregon

(1994] (2} (6)

Benjamin R.Whiteley, 72
Chairman and CEO Retired
Standard Insurance Company
(A financial services company)
Portland, Oregon

[1989] (1) (3)

Richard L.Woolworth, 60
Chairman and CEO

The Regence Group

(Regional affiliation of health plans)
Portland, Oregon

(20007 (2) (6)

[Year elected to the board]

(1) Executive Committee

(2) Audit Committee

(3) Organization and Executive Compensation Committee
(4) Retirement and Pension Committees

(5) Environmental Policy Committee

(6) Finance Committee

Equal Employment Opportunity
Policy Statememnt

It is the policy of NW Natural to grant equal
employment opportunity to all of its employees
and its applicants for employment in a manner
that assures full compliance with applicable local,
state and federal laws and regulations. This means
that in all matters related to employment and
application for employment, NW Natural shall
afford everyone equal treatment regardless of
race, color, religion, national origin, age, gender,
sexual orientation, or disability. This policy is
applicable to terms and conditions of employ-
ment, rates of compensation, training, partici-
pation in Company-sponsored programs, and
opportunity for advancement.

Itis the objective of NW Natural to attain rea-
sonable parity throughout the Company between
the ethnic mix and gender of its employees and
the labor force from which its jobs can be filled.

The Vice President of Human Resources has
the prime responsibility for developing, imple-
menting, and administering an affirmative action
plan through the Human Resources Department
to assure that the required action by all levels of
management is taken to achieve the objectives
as stated above.

The responsibilities include, but are not lim-
ited to:

1. Ensuring that hiring, promotion, transfer,
and salary administration practices are fair, uni-
formly practiced, and consistent with Company
policy.

2. Ensuring that Company policies pertain-
ing to equal employment opportunities are stat-
ed in a clear and concise manner and that they
are communicated to all levels within the organ-
ization.

3. Reviewing the results of the program and
assisting in providing remedial action to allevi-
ate any problems.

Each representative of management is re-
sponsible for affirmative action.

Adopted by NW Natural Officers, 1996

iN MEMORIAM

Ralph J.Voss
1910 - 2002

Director 1969 - 1983
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Corporate Officers

Bruce R.DeBolt, 54 [1980]
Senior Vice President, Finance, and
Chief Financial Officer (1990- )
Senior Vice President, Finance and
Administration and General Counsel
(1987-1990)

Vice President and General Counsel
(1983-1987)

Mark S.Dodsonr, 57 [1997]
President, Chief Operating Officer
(2001- )

General Counsel (1997- )

Senior Vice President, Public Affairs
(1997-2001)

Partner, Ater Wynne Hewitt Dodson &
Skerritt LLP (1981-1997)

Lea Anne Doolittle, 46 [2000]
Vice President, Human Resources
(2000- )

Director of Compensation, PacifiCorp
(1993-2000)

Director of Human Resources,
Planning and Development, PacifiCorp
(1990-1993)

Stephen P.Feltz, 46 [1982]
Treasurer and Controller (19992- )
Assistant Treasurer and Manager,
General Accounting (1996-1999)
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[Date joined NW Natural]

Gregg S.Kantor, 44 [1996]
Vice President, Public Affairs
and Communications (1998- )
Director, Public Affairs and
Communications (1996-1997)
Principal, Kantor & Associates
(1994-1996)

Michael 5. McCoy, 58 [1969]
Executive Vice President, Customer
and Utility Operations (2000- )
Senior Vice President, Customer

and Utility Operations (1999-2000)
Senior Vice President, Customer Services
(1992-1999)

Richard G.Reiten, 62 [1995]
Chairman of the Board (2000- )
Chief Executive Officer (1997- )
President (1996-2001)

President and Chief Operating Officer,
Portland General Electric Company
(1992-1995)

C.J.Rue, 56 [1974]
Secretary (1982- )
Assistant Treasurer (1987- )




e

desitjn Graphic Solutions  Cover Photo Dennis Frates “FEatiire PRGTOGrapny Uhariie BOTINU  FUI U1aiy 25aresum, G et e. = o o figmsrn.

Production Grapheon Design  Printing Graphic Arts Center  Printed on recycled stock

Corporate Information
Notice of Annual Meeting '

The 2002 Annual Meeting will be held at

2 p.m.Thursday, May 23, at the DoubleTree
Hotel-Portland-Lloyd Center, 1fdb0 N.E.
Multnomah Street, Portland, Oregon.

A meeting notice and proxy statement

will be sent to alt shareholders in mid-April.

Form 10-K ‘

The Company will provide its sh‘areholders,
without charge, a copy of the 2(%01 Annual
Report on Form 10-K to the Sedurities and
Exchange Commission. Requests should be
made to the Corporate Secretaréy.

Stock Transfer Agent and Registrar
For all Preferred, Preference and
Common Stock Issues:

NW Natural

220 N.W.Second Avenue

Portland, Oregon 97209

Attention: Shareholder Serwces

Trustee, Conversion and Int!erest
Paying Agent

For Convertible Debentures:

The Bank of New York

Corporate Debt Operations, Floor 7-E
101 Barclay Street

New York, New York 10286

(800) 254-2826

Trustee and Bond Paying Agent
For all bond issugs:

BT Services Tennessee Inc.

Security Holder Relations

P.O.Box 305050

Nashville, Tennessee 37230

(800) 735-7777

Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

Common Stock Prices
Through July 26,2000, the Company's
common stock was traded on the Nasdag
National Market System usi ng the symbol
NWNG.On July 27,2000, the common stock
was listed and began trading on the New
York Stock Exchange using the symbol

NWN.The quarterly high and low trading

range during 2000 and 2001 was:

2001

Quarter High Low
1 26.690 23.050
P 25.2‘50 21.650
3 25.§50 22.390
4 26.300 22.000

I

2000

Quarter High Low
1 22500 17.750
2 23.§75 18.875
3 24.?25 21.625
4 27.500 21.875

I
Dividend Reinvestment Plan
Common shareholders of :record may
reinvest all or part of their dividends in
additional shares under the Company'’s
plan. Cash purchases also may be made at
the current market price under this plan,
and no brokerage fees will be charged.
A prospectus will be sent tojany registered
shareholder on request.

Dividend Payment Dates
February 15,2002
May 15,2002
August 15,2002
November 15,2002

i Quarter ended

Dollars (thousands except per share amounts) March 31 June 30 Sept. 30 Dec. 31 Total
2001

Operating revenues 217,341 118,150 78,359 236,402 650,252
Net operating revenues 91,653 54,726 37,067 92,565 276,011
Net income (loss) 25,907 4,865 (4,976) 24,391 50,187
Basic earnings (loss) per share 1.00 0.17 (0.22) 0.94 1.90°
Diluted earnings (loss) per share 0.99 0.17 (0.22) 0.93 1.88
2000

‘Operating revenues 186,649 86,136 61,255 1?8 070 532,110
Net operating revenues 93,088 45,886 35,566 83410 257,950
Net income (loss) from continuing opeqatlons 29,192 2,498 (4,868) 20,990 47,812
Gain (loss) on sale of discontinued segmem 2,470 (35) (17) (6) 2,412
Net income {loss) 31,662 2,463 (4,885) 20,984 50,224
Basic earnings (loss) per share 1.24 0.07 (0.22) 0.81 1.90°
Diluted earnings (loss) per share i 1.22 0.07 (0.22) 0.80 1.88

* Quarterly earnings per share are based upon the average number of common shares outstanding du ring each quarter.
Because the average number of shares outstanding has changed in each quarter shown, the sum of guarterly earnings
may not equal earnings per share for the year Variations in earnings between quarterly periods are due primarily to the

seasonal nature of the Company’s business.

.be affected by various uncertainties and
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.'Iamejs R.Boehlke i
Investor Relations
(503)721-2451
- (800) %122-40%2,
Ext. 2451
jrb @n wnatural.coni;

. J
Linda R.Williams
‘TS h areﬁolder S ervice
1(503)220-25 90
‘(800) 422-4012,
\ Ext 3402
\Irw@nwnatural com

n

NW Natural

220 N.W. Second Avenue
Portland, O.regon 97209
(503) 226- 421 1
(800) 422 40?1 2
www.nwr@\aturail.com
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Forward-looking statements :
The Company’s future operating results wjil

risk factors, many of which are beyofnd the
Company’s control, including goverpmental
policy and regulatory action, the co“mpeti .
tive environ:me:nt,ecc#nomi}c factorsiand
weather conditions.Some statements in
this annual report méy be forward-locking,
and actual results may dlffer materially asg
aresult of these uncertalnt|es For aimore \1
complete descrlptlon of these uncertalntles
and risk factors, pleasie refer to the GCom-
pany's filings with thé Secufities and
Exchange Commnssuon on \Forms 16-K
and 10-Q.
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NW Natural

220 NW Second Avenue
Portland, Oregon 97209
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